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NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighty First Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Industrial Investment Trust Limited 
will be held at 

to transact the following business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet 

for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board 
of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

 2. To declare dividend on Preference Shares at the rate of 
10%, absorbing a sum of ` 13,26,986/-  for the year ended 
March 31, 2014.

3. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended 
March 31, 2014.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Bipin Agarwal (DIN: 
00001276), who retires by rotation at this Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

  the retiring Auditors, M/s. Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad 
(Firm Registration No. 117365W), be and are hereby  

from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and that the 

remuneration payable to them.” 

6. 

the following resolution as a 

  in supersession of the Resolution 
passed at the 73rd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on September 01, 2006 and pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company and/or any Committee thereof to 
borrow from time to time sums of money for the purpose 
of the business of the Company notwithstanding that the 
moneys to be borrowed together with the moneys already 
borrowed by the Company(apart from temporary loans 
obtained or to be obtained from the company’s bankers in 
the ordinary course of business) with or without security on 

the aggregate of the paid-up capital and free reserves of 
the Company that is to say,reserves not set apart for any 

ovided that the total amount of borrowing 
togetherwith the money(s) already borrowed by the Board of 
Directors shall not exceed the sum of ` 750 Crores (Rupees 
Seven Hundred and Fifty Crores Only) at any one time.”

  pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 

thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule 
IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. R. S. Loona (DIN: 
02305074), Director of the Company, who was appointed as 
a Director liable to retire by rotation and whose term expires 
at this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a 
declaration that he meets the criteria for independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 

be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of 
the Company, with effect from August 30, 2014 up to the 
86th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
2019 for the year ended March 31, 2019.” 

 pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 

thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV 
to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava  
(DIN: 00020021),Director of the Company, who has submitted 
a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and whose period of 

by rotation under the erstwhile applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 

appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, with 
effect from August 30, 2014 up to the 86th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019 for the year 
ended March 31, 2019.” 
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  pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 

thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Venkatesan Narayanan (DIN: 
00765294), Director of the Company, who has submitted a 
declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and whose period of 

by rotation under the erstwhile applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 

appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, with 
effect from August 30, 2014 up to the 86th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019 for the year 
ended March 31, 2019.”

 pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 
and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), consent 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the existing 
related party transactions entered by the Company for renting 

Floor, 28, Bombay Samachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai-400 001 
to its subsidiaries with effect from April 01, 2014 on payment 
of rent and reimbursement of expenses upto the maximum 
limits as set out in the table hereunder:

 

Relationship 
with the 

Related Party 

Subsidiary Wholly 
Owned 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary Wholly  
Owned 

Subsidiary

Wholly 
Owned 

Subsidiary

Leasing of 
Property of 

any kind

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

Others - ` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

` 
5,00,000/-

  to give effect to this resolution 
the Board of Directors and /or committee thereof be and is 

may arise with regard to giving effect to the above resolution 
and to do all acts, deeds, things, as may be necessary in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper desirable and to 

    By Order of the Board of Directors 
For I  

 
                         CEO & Company Secretary

Mumbai : July 25, 2014
 

 
28, Bombay Samachar Marg 
Mumbai 400 001 
CIN: L65990MH1933PLC001998 
E-mail address: iitl@iitlgroup.com 
Website: www.iitlgroup.com

1. 

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from Saturday, August 23, 2014 
to Saturday, August 30, 2014 (both days inclusive).

3. The dividend on Equity Shares as recommended by the Board, 
if declared at the Annual General Meeting, will be payable on 
or before September 28, 2014 to those shareholders or their 
mandates whose names stand on the Register of Members 
after giving effect to all valid transfer deeds in physical form 
lodged with the Company on or before August 22, 2014 and 
in respect of dematerialised shares, the dividend will be 

be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited for the purpose 
as on the close of business hours on August 22, 2014.

4. Dividend in respect of shares held in dematerialised form 

to availability of bank account details and 9 digits MICR code 
number. In case the said details have not been provided 
to the concerned Depository Participant or there is any 
change, the same may please be intimated to the concerned 
Depository Participant immediately.



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

4

 Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of 
availing ECS facility, should provide the bank details and 9 
digits MICR code number.

5.   Members are requested to send all correspondences relating 
to shares including requests for transfer, change of address, 
change of status, change of mandate, Bank Account details 
to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: M/s. Link Intime 

Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai 
400 078, Tel. No.: 2596 3838. In respect of shares held in 
dematerialised mode, the shareholders should inform their 
concerned Depository Participant only.

6. In all the correspondences with the Company / Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agents, the members holding in physical 
form are requested to quote their account / folio numbers 
and in case their shares are held in dematerialised form, 
they must quote their Client ID Number and DP ID Number.

7. Members are requested to bring the copy of their Annual Report 
and the Attendance Slip at the Annual General Meeting.

8. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts 
are requested to write to the Company at an early date so as 
to enable the Management to keep the information ready at 
the meeting.

9. In accordance with the provisions of Section 205A of 
the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred 
unclaimed dividends in September, 1998 for the year ended 
March 31, 1995 to the General Revenue Account of the 
Central Government. Members concerned may, therefore, 

Building, ‘A’ Wing, 2nd Floor, Next to Reserve Bank of India, 
CBD, Belapur - 400 614.   

10. In terms of section 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 
1956, any dividend remaining unpaid for a period of seven 
years from the due date of payment is required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). Members who have not encashed their dividend 
warrants for the year 2006-2007 or thereafter are requested 
to write to the Company / Registrars and Share Transfer 
agents. 

11. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, facility 
for making nominations is available to the shareholders in 
respect of the shares held by them. Nomination forms can 
be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 
(RTA) of the Company.

12. Pursuant to the Circular No.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated 
21.04.2011 and 29.04.2011 respectively issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs on 

, Shareholders are requested to duly 
communicate their e-mail Id’s to their respective DPs or RTA 
of the Company (A perforated form being attached in the 
Annual Report for the same).

13. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted 
at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

14. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses 
so far are requested to register their e-mail address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report, 
Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

 In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Company has engaged the services of 
CDSL to provide the facility of electronic voting (‘e-voting’) in 
respect of the Resolutions proposed at this AGM. 

(i) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
(ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(iii) Now, select the “INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST 

LIMITED” from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”
(iv) Now Enter your User ID 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 
Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should 
enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Click on Login.
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 

on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is 
to be used. 

 

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN 
issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders 
as well as physical shareholders)

PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the 

last 8 digits of the demat account/folio 

8 digits enter the applicable number 

two characters of the name in CAPITAL 
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with folio number 100 then enter 

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records 
for the said demat account or folio in dd/
mm/yyyy format.
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Dividend 
Bank 
Details#

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as 
recorded in your demat account or in 
the company records for the said demat 
account or folio.

Details in order to login. If the details 
are not recorded with the depository 
or company please enter 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then 
reach directly the Company selection screen. However, 
members holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions 
of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <INDUSTRIAL 
INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED> on which you choose 
to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to 
the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed 
password then Enter the User ID and the image 

the details as prompted by the system.
(xviii) Corporate / Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 
https://www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves 
as Corporates. 

Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of 
the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

a user who would be able to link the account(s) 
which they wish to vote on. 

helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, 
in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same.

(A) User ID and initial password is provided in the admission 
slip for the AGM. 

(B) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xviii) 
above to cast vote.

(a) Every Client ID No. / Folio No. shall have one e-vote, 

(b) Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value 
of shares registered in the name of the Member as on 
Friday, July 25, 2014. 

(c) E-voting right cannot be exercised by a proxy. 
(d) 

 During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of July 25, 2014, 
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(e) In case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.
evotingindia.co.in under help section or write an email 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(f) Ms.Chandanbala O. Mehta, Practising Company 
Secretary has been appointed as Scrutinizer for 
scrutinizing the e-voting procedure in a fair and 
transparent manner.

(g) The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding 
three (3) working days from the conclusion of the 
e-voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of 
at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of 
the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the 
votes cast in favour of or against, if any, forthwith to the 
Chairman of the Company.  

(h) 

 The declared Results, alongwith the Scrutinizer’s 
Report, will be available on the Company’s corporate 
website  under the section‘Investor 
Relations’and on the website of CDSL; such Results 
will also be forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where 
the Company’s shares are listed.



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

6

01.11.1965 21.09.1951 20.07.1945 27.11.1955

Indian Indian Indian Indian

08.01.2008 09.03.2009 28.01.2013 18.05.2009

B.Com. (Hons.), FCS B.Sc., LLB B.Com, FCA B.Com. 

He has vast and rich experience in 
the areas of Portfolio Management, 
Finance and matters related to 
Corporate Laws, Mergers and 
Acquisitions, Operations in Capital 
and Commodities Market.

He is a leading corporate lawyer 
with specialization in securities 

and regulatory advice. He has 
served as an Executive Director 
(Law) of Securities & Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) for a period 
of about 4 years.  He has also had 
a long stint with IDBI, a principal 

commercial banks.

He started his career with LIC 
of India and worked at various 
places and key Departments viz. 
Investment Dept., Audit & Inspection 
Dept., Finance & Accounts Dept. 
and Estate Management. He was 
elevated to the post of Executive 
Director (Investment). Post 
retirement in July 2005, he was 
appointed as an Investment Advisor 

Insurance Co. Ltd. Also, he is on the 
Advisory Board of ILFS Tara Fund.

He has over 26 years of experience 
in Senior Management. He has 
consulting expertise in infrastructure 
segment covering roads, bridges, 
power, tourism, urban infrastructure.  

1. Nimbus India Limited

3. Nimbus Multi Commodity 
Brokers Limited

4. N.N. Financial Services Private 
Limited

5. Urvashi Finvest Limited
6. Gupta Fincaps Private Limited

8. IIT Insurance Broking and Risk 
Management Private Limited

9. IIT Investrust Limited
10. IIT Media and Entertainment 

Private Limited

Limited
12. World Resorts Limited
13. MRG Hotels Private Limited

2. IIT Media & Entertainment Pvt. 
Ltd.

3. India Infoline Trustee Company 
Ltd.

4. Kesar Terminals & 
Infrastructure Limited

5. MRG Hotels Private Limited
6. Asset Reconstruction Company 

(India) Limited

1. A.K. Capital Services Limited
2. OTC Exchange of India
3. Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited
4. Escorts Limited

6. Jaiprakash Associates Limited
7. Cox & Kings Limited
8. Jaiprakash Power Ventures 

Limited
9. Asahi Industries Limited

11. GK Industrial Park Private 
Limited

12. IIT Insurance Broking and Risk 
Management Private Limited

13. Welworth Fin Invest Private 
Limited

14. A.K. Finance Private Limited

2. IIT Investrust Limited
3. IIT Corporate Insurance 

Services Private Limited

1. IIT Investrust Limited
2. IIT Insurance Broking and Risk 

Management Private Limited
3. World Resorts Limited

2. India Infoline Trustee Company 
Limited

3. Kesar Terminals & 
Infrastructure Limited

2. Cox & Kings Limited
3. Asahi Industries Limited
4. IIT Insurance Broking and Risk 

Management Private Limited
5. Jaiprakash Associates Limited
6.  Escorts Limited
 

1.  Cox & Kings Limited
2.  Escorts Limited

2. IIT Investrust Limited
 

 
 
 
 

25,000 NIL NIL NIL
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The members of the Company at their 73rd Annual General 
Meeting held on September 01,2006 had accorded their 
approval under Section 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for 
borrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital 
and free reserves of the Company up to Rs. 150 Crores (Rupees 
One Hundred and Fifty Crores).

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 
September 12, 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not 
borrow money in excess of the company’s paid up share capital 
and free reserves, apart from temporary loans obtained from the 
company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except 
with the consent of the company accorded by way of a special 
resolution.

It is, therefore, necessary for the members to pass a Special 
Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out at Item No. 6 of 
the Notice, to enable to the Board of Directors to borrow money 
in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free 
reserves of the Company. Approval of members is being sought 
to borrow money upto Rs. 750 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred 
and Fifty Crores) in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share 
capital and free reserves of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Company had, pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement entered with the Stock Exchanges, appointed 
Mr. R.S. Loona, Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava and Mr. Venkatesan 
Narayanan as Independent Directors at various times, in 
compliance with the requirements of the said clause.

As per the provisions of Section 149(4)  of the Companies Act, 
2013 which has come into force with effect from April 01, 2014, 
every listed company is required to have at least one-third of 
the total number of Directors as Independent Directors. Further, 
Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013  provides that 

consecutive years on the Board of a company and is not liable to 
retire by rotation pursuant to Section 149(13) read with Section 
152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has amended 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement which would be effective 
from October 01, 2014 inter alia stipulates the conditions for the 
appointment of Independent Directors by a listed company. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has recommended 
the appointments of these Directors as Independent Directors 
from August 30, 2014 up to the 86th Annual General Meeting of 

the Company to be held in 2019 for the year ended March 31, 2019.

The above Independent Directors have given a declaration to the 
Board that they meet the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the 

appointment as Independent Directors and they are independent 
of the management.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with 
Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of the above Directors as 
Independent Directors is now being placed before the Members 
in General Meeting for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors 
shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered 

during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

given below:

He is a leading corporate lawyer with specialization in securities 

and regulatory advice. He has served as an Executive Director 
(Law) of Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for a period 
of about 4 years. He has also had a long stint with IDBI, a principal 

Mr. R.S. Loona has been on the Company's Board since March 
09, 2009 and is an Independent Director.

He started his career with LIC of India and worked at various places 
and key Departments viz. Investment Dept., Audit & Inspection 
Dept., Finance & Accounts Dept. and Estate Management.  
He was elevated to the post of Executive Director (Investment). 
Post retirement in July 2005, he was appointed as an Investment 

Also, he is on the Advisory Board of ILFS Tara Fund.

Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava has been on the Company's Board 
since January 28, 2013 and is an Independent Director.

He has over 24 years of experience in Senior Management. 
He has consulting expertise in infrastructure segment covering 
roads, bridges, power, tourism, urban infrastructure.  

Mr. Venkatesan Narayanan has been on the Company's Board 
since May 18, 2009 and is an Independent Director.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item 
Nos. 7 to 9 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

The above Independent Directors are interested in the Resolutions 
mentioned at Item Nos.7 to 9 of the Notice with regard to their 
respective appointments. Other than the above Independent 
Directors, no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
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respective relatives are concerned or interested in the Resolutions 
mentioned at Item Nos.7 to 9 of the Notice.

The provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
that govern the following Related Party Transactions require a 
Company to obtain prior approval of the Board of Directors and 
in case the paid-up share capital of a company is Rs. 10 crores 
or more, the prior approval of shareholders by way of a Special 
Resolution:

(a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;
(b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;
(c) leasing of property of any kind;
(d) availing or rendering of any services;
(e) appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, 

materials, services or property;

company; and
(g)   underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives 

thereof, of the company.
In the light of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of your Company has approved the proposed transactions 
along with the limits that the Company may enter into with its 

as mentioned in the resolution at Item No.10. The premise is 
located at prime location. The subsidiaries are occupying the 

the prevailing rentals and commercial terms in the vicinity, the 
subsidiaries are accordingly paying rent and reimbursing the 
expenses for the utility of the premises. 

The management of these companies decided to occupy the 
premises on rental basis rather than purchasing a separate 

within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and also under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 15 and 16 of 
the Companies(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
prescribes certain procedure for approval of a Related Party 
Transaction. Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement also comes into 
operation for a Related Party Transaction. A combined reading 
of all these provisions and other applicable provisions suggest 
that in certain conditions, approval of Audit Committee, Board 
approval and Shareholders approval by way of Special Resolution 
is required for Related Party Transactions. Proviso to Section 
188 also states that nothing in Section 188(1) will apply to any 
transaction entered into by the company in its ordinary course of 
business and at arm’s length basis. These transactions with the 
subsidiaries are based on prevailing market conditions hence on 

of term ‘ordinary course of business’, the Board thought it prudent 
to obtain approval of the shareholders for the said transactions. 

The other related information as envisaged under the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are furnished 
hereunder:

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: 

(b) Nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the 
contract / arrangement / transaction: 

 Nature and duration of the arrangement: 

 Particulars of the arrangement: 

(c) Material terms of the contract of arrangement including the 
value, if any: 

(d) Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, 
if any: 

(e) Manner of determining the pricing and other commercial 
terms both included as part of contract and not considered 
as part of the contract: 

  

(f) Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been 
considered, if not, the details of factors not considered with 
rationale for not considering those factors: 

(g) Any other information relevant or important for the Board to 
take a decision on the proposed transaction: 

Members are hereby informed that pursuant to second proviso 
of section 188(1) of the 2013 Act, no member of the company 
shall vote on such special resolution to approve any contract or 
arrangement which may be entered into by the company, if such 
member is a related party.

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved this item 
in the Board Meeting held on July 25, 2014 and recommends the 
Resolution as set out in the accompanying Notice for the approval 
of members of the Company as a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

or otherwise, in the resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
  For

 
    CEO & Company Secretary

Mumbai : July 25, 2014

 
 

28, Bombay Samachar Marg 
Mumbai 400 001  
CIN: L65990MH1933PLC001998 
E-mail address: iitl@iitlgroup.com 
Website: www.iitlgroup.com
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Current Year 
(` in lakhs)

Previous Year 
(` in lakhs)

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(a)  Total Income 2026.84 1449.41

1698.18 1080.32
8.48   9.30

1689.70 1071.02
  287.76  214.62
1401.94 856.40

 
3637.70 3357.23

 on dividend   52.56       -

5092.20 4213.63

280.39 171.28
 General Reserve 105.15 42.82

`
 

`

`  10/- 

371.36 297.03

`
` 1.00 

` 10/- 

13.27 12.24

65.37 52.56
 

4256.66   3637.70

OPERATING RESULTS  

`
`

` 
`

`

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
`

DIVIDEND

`  
`

` 10/- 
`

` 450.00 lakhs. 

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

`

`
` 10/- each. 

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GDR AND CCPS ISSUE

`

`
CCPS. 

`

 
`
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INVESTMENTS

`

`

`
`

`

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

` 532.63 crores. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

IIT Investrust Limited (IITIL)

IITL Projects Limited - (IITLPL) 

Project being developed by the Company: 
Express Park View I

Projects being developed by the Company alongwith SPVs:
The Hyde Park

The Golden Palms

Express Park View II

2017-2018.
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The Golden Palm Village

IIT Insurance Broking and Risk Management Private Limited 
(IIBRMPL)

IIT Media and Entertainment Private Limited (IMEPL)

investment in some avenues in media and entertainment.    

IITL Corporate Insurance Services Private Limited

`

INVESTMENTS IN WORLD RESORTS LIMITED (WRL), AN 
ASSOCIATE COMPANY

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 1956

FIXED DEPOSITS 

TRANSFER TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND (IEPF)

 
`

DIRECTORS
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOINGS 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

at all levels. 

Dr. B. Samal
                  Chairman 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

GLOBAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO:

Global economy continued to encounter challenges for the 

THE INDIAN ECONOMY:

 

 

INDIAN CAPITAL MARKETS:

billion 

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

` 

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS:
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

` 
` 

 
` ` 

` 

` 

HUMAN RESOURCE:

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

transactions a

OUTLOOK FOR GLOBAL AND INDIAN ECONOMY:

DISCLAIMER:

The information and opinion expressed in this section of the 
Annual Report may contain certain statements, which the 
Management believes are true to the best of its knowledge at the 
time of its preparation.  The Company and the Management shall 
not be held liable for any loss, which may arise as a result of any 
action taken on the basis of the information contained herein
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

 Your Company has been upholding the core values in all 
facets of its corporate working, with due concern for the 
welfare of shareholders of the Company. The Management 
has consistently followed the principles of Corporate 
Governance, based on fairness, transparency, integrity, 
accountability and the compliance with laws in all corporate 
decisions.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 Composition of the Board, Category of Directors, Other 
Directorships, Committee Memberships and Chairmanships 
of other companies are given in the table below:

Sr. 
No

Name of the  
Directors

Category No. of  
other  

Director- 
ships  
held*

No. of 
Committee 
Member- 

ships  
of other  

Companies#

No. of 
Committee 
Chairman-

ships of  
other  

Companies

1 Dr. B. Samal NI / E
Executive 
Chairman

9 3                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                             

3

2 Mr. Bipin Agarwal NI / NE 
Promoter

7 1 1

3 Mr. R.S. Loona I / NE 4 3 1

4 Mr. Venkatesan 
Narayanan  

I / NE 2 3 Nil

5. Mr. Subhash C. 
Bhargava

I / NE 10 7 Nil

6 Mr. P.K. Rath I / NE 
Representative 
of LIC of India

Nil Nil Nil

NI - Non Independent Director 
I - Independent Director 
NE - Non-Executive Director 
E - Executive Director

* Excludes alternate directorships and directorships 
in foreign companies and private companies and 
Companies u/s.25 of the Companies Act, 1956.

# Excludes Committees other than Audit Committee, 
Shareholder / Investor Grievance Committee of Public 
Limited Companies and Chairmanships.

Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting

The meetings of the Board are scheduled well in advance. The 
Board meets at least once in a quarter inter alia to review the 
performance of the Company. For each meeting, a detailed 
agenda is prepared in consultation with the Chairman.

During the year 2013-2014, 4 Board Meetings were held i.e., on 
May 14, 2013, August 01, 2013, October 29, 2013 and January 
28, 2014.

Attendance at the Board Meetings and at the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM)

Name of the Director No. of Board  
Meetings attended

Attendance  
at the last AGM

Dr. B. Samal 4 Yes
Mr. Bipin Agarwal 4 Yes
Mr. R.S. Loona 4 Yes
Mr. Venkatesan Narayanan 4 Yes
Mr. P.K. Rath 4 No
Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava 4 Yes

 3. BOARD COMMITTEES
 The Board has constituted the following Committees of 

Directors:
a) Audit Committee:
 The Audit Committee was constituted on March 14, 

2001. It was last reconstituted on January 28, 2013.
 A brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee is as follows: 
 To review Internal Auditors’ Report, the Statutory Auditors’ 

to select and establish accounting policies, reviewing 

with the auditors periodically about internal control 
system, to appoint and decide the remuneration of the 
internal auditor.  

 During the year under review, four meetings of the Audit 
Committee were held, the dates being May 14, 2013, 
August 01, 2013, October 29, 2013 and January 28, 
2014.

 The composition and attendance of members at the 
Audit Committee Meetings are as follows:

Audit Committee  
Members

Status No. of Audit Committee 
Meetings Attended

Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava Chairman 4
Mr. R.S. Loona Member 4
Mr. P.K. Rath Member 4

 Ms. Cumi Banerjee, CEO & Company Secretary acts as 
Secretary to the Committee and attends the meetings.

 Each member of the Committee has relevant experience 

Committee being a Chartered Accountant.
b) Remuneration Committee (Non-Mandatory):
 The Remuneration Committee was constituted on 

June 19, 2002 consisting of three Non-Executive 
and Independent Directors, which was subsequently 
dissolved on June 11, 2004 and reconstituted on January 
13, 2005. The Committee was last reconstituted on  
May 14, 2013.

 Main functions of the Remuneration Committee include 
recommendation to the Board of Directors, salary, 



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

16

Executive Chairman or Whole-Time Directors.
 During the year under review, one meeting of the 

Remuneration Committee was held on August 01, 2013. 
 The composition and attendance of members as on 

March 31, 2014 is as follows:

Remuneration 
Committee  
Members

Status No. of 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr. P.K. Rath Chairman 1
Mr. R.S. Loona   Member 1
Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava* Member 1

*  Appointed as a member of Remuneration Committee 
on May 14, 2013

 The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the 
Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of 
Shareholders, Central Government and other authorities, 
as may be applicable, at its meeting held on August 01, 
2013, increased the remuneration payable to Dr. B. 
Samal, Executive Chairman, with effect from August 01, 
2013 to January 23, 2016, being the remaining period 
of his term. The increase in remuneration is within the 
limits prescribed under Schedule XIII of the Companies 
Act, 1956.  The shareholders accorded their approval 
in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
September 07, 2013.

Committee, no performance linked incentives are paid to 
Dr. B. Samal.

 Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Chairman 
for the year 2013-2014 are given below:

Name Salary Perquisites Contribution to 
P.F and other 

funds 

Total

` ` ` `

Dr. B. Samal 25,00,000/- 5,41,667/- 3,00,000/- 33,41,667/-
 Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors 

for the year 2013-2014 are given below:
 Sitting Fees

Name Board
Meetings

Committee 
Meetings

Total

` ` `

Mr. Bipin Agarwal 80,000/- 20,000/- 1,00,000/-
Mr. R.S. Loona 80,000/- 3,60,000/- 4,40,000/-
Mr. Venkatesan 
Narayanan

80,000/- 40,000/- 1,20,000/-

Mr. P.K. Rath 80,000/- 3,40,000/- 4,20,000/-
Mr. Subhash C. 
Bhargava

80,000/- 1,20,000/- 2,00,000/-

Total  4,00,000/- 8,80,000/- 12,80,000/-

 During the year, the Non-Executive Directors are paid 
sitting fees at the rate of Rs.20,000/- for attending each 
meeting of the Board and Rs.20,000/- for attending each 
Committee meeting thereof.

 Mr. Bipin Agarwal holds 25,000 equity shares in the 
Company and none of the remaining Directors hold any 
equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2014.

 Presently, the Company does not have a practice of 
granting stock options.

c) Share Transfer & Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance 
Committee (STIGC)

 The Board had constituted Share Transfer & 
Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee 
(STIGC) on January 16, 2002. The Committee was last 
re-constituted on January 28, 2013. 

 The Committee as on March 31, 2014 consisted of 3 
members, namely:

 Mr. R.S. Loona - Non Executive Director - Chairman

 Dr. B. Samal -  Member

 Mr. P.K. Rath - Member

This Committee: 

(1) approves and monitors transfers, transmissions, splitting 
and consolidation of shares and the issue of duplicate 

(2) looks into various issues relating to shareholders, 
including redressing of complaints received from 
shareholders, relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt 
of balance sheets, dividends etc. 

 To expedite share transfer process, the Board has 
authorised the CEO & Company Secretary of the 
Company to approve share transfer up to one thousand 
shares. Share transfers for more than one thousand 
shares are approved by the STIGC. During the year, 
12 meetings were held. Transfer formalities have been 
attended at least once in a fortnight.  

-  Name and designation  Ms. Cumi Banerjee 

- No. of shareholders   5 
complaints received

- No. of complaints not  Nil 
resolved to the  
satisfaction of the  
shareholders      

- Pending complaints   Nil 
as on 31.03.2014   

 The Company attends to investors’ & shareholders’ 
grievances within 15 days from the date of its receipt. 
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d) Committee for Investments / Loans and Risk 
Management

 The Board had constituted ‘Committee of Directors’ 
on March 05, 2008 to deal with matters concerning 
investments and granting loans. On July 20, 2010, the 
nomenclature of Committee of Directors was changed to 
‘Committee for Investment and Loans’. 

 The Board had constituted a Risk Management 
Committee on June 02, 2006. 

 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 
01, 2013, decided that a new Committee by the name 
‘Committee for Investments / Loans and Risk 
Management’ be constituted in place of ‘Committee 
for Investments and Loans’ and ‘Risk Management 
Committee’ which would deal with matters concerning 
investments, granting loans, taking / providing guarantees 
/ securities and address all risks which can create impact 
on the business of the Company.

 The Committee as on March 31, 2014 consisted of 4 
members, namely:

 Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava - Chairman

 Dr. B. Samal - Member

 Mr. Bipin Agarwal - Member

 Mr. R.S. Loona - Member

 During the year under review, the following meetings 
were held:

- Committee for Investments / Loans and Risk 
Management - on August 03, 2013

e)  Asset Liability Management Committee
 The Board has constituted ‘Asset Liability Management 

Committee’ (ALCO) on August 01, 2013 consisting of 
senior management executives which monitors liquidity 
and interest rate risks of the Company. The functioning 
of ALCO is reviewed by the Committee for Investments / 
Loans and Risk Management which meets on quarterly 
basis and reports to the Board of Directors.

  During the year under review, the Asset Liability 
Management Committee met once on January 21, 2014.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
 Management Discussion and Analysis
 A Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part 

of the Annual Report and includes discussions on various 

Agreement.

 Subsidiary Companies
 Under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, an Independent 

Director of the Company is required to be appointed 
as Director on the Board of the material unlisted Indian 
subsidiaries.  

 The following Independent Directors have been appointed as 
a Director on the Board of the unlisted subsidiary companies:

1. Mr. Subhash C. Bhargava - IIT Insurance Broking and 
Risk Management Private Limited (material unlisted 

2. Mr. R.S. Loona - IIT Media and Entertainment Private 
Limited (non-material unlisted subsidiary) w.e.f. January 

3. Mr. Venkatesan Narayanan - IITL Corporate Insurance 
Services Private Limited (non-material unlisted 
subsidiary) w.e.f. January 31, 2014.

statements, including the investments made, of its material 
unlisted subsidiaries.

 The Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the 
unlisted subsidiary Companies are regularly placed before the 
Board of Directors of the Company. A statement containing 

the unlisted subsidiaries are periodically placed before the 
Board of Directors of the Company.

 Disclosures - Related party transactions

 Statements in summary form of transactions with related 
parties are periodically placed before the Audit Committee.  

 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

 The Company has followed Accounting Standards laid down 
by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 in 

 Disclosure on Risk Management

 The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board 
members about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures. The Board periodically reviews the same. 

 Code of Conduct

 As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the 
Board of Directors of the Company have adopted a Code 
of Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management 
of the Company. The members of the Board of Directors 

said Code during the period under review. A declaration to 
this effect signed by the Chairman of the Company is given 
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

 

 In terms of the requirements of Clause 49 (V) of the Listing 
Agreement, the Executive Chairman, Dr. B. Samal and CEO 
& Company Secretary, Ms. Cumi Banerjee, have submitted 

Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 20, 2014.
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5. COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS WITH NON-MANDATORY 
REQUIREMENT OF LISTING AGREEMENT 

 Besides complying with mandatory requirements of the 
Listing Agreement, the Company has also complied with 
some Non-Mandatory requirements of Listing Agreement 
which includes setting up of Remuneration Committee.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
 Location and time where last three AGMs were held:

Sr. 
No.

Date Location Time Special Resolution 
passed

1. September 
07, 2013

M.C. Ghia Hall,
18/20, K. Dubash 
Marg, Mumbai - 
400 001

3.30 
p.m.

Re-appointment of  
Dr. B. Samal as Executive 
Chairman and Increase in 
Remuneration

2. September 
20, 2012

M.C. Ghia Hall,
18/20, K. Dubash 
Marg, Mumbai - 
400 001

3.30 
p.m.

.

1) Alteration of Articles 
of Association of the 
Company

2) Raising of Funds 
through Issue of 10% 
Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares of the 
Company on Preferential 
basis

3. September 
10, 2011

M.C. Ghia Hall,
18/20, K. Dubash 
Marg, Mumbai - 
400 001

3.00  
p.m.

NIL

 No resolution has been approved by way of Postal Ballot, 
nor the Company proposed any resolution which required 
approval by way of Postal Ballot.

7. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

related parties during the year, which had or could have 

large. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed 
in Note Number 2.23 to the Accounts in the Annual 
Report.

b)   No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the 
Company by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any other 
statutory authority, for non-compliance of any laws, on 
any matter related to the capital markets, during the last 
three years. 

c)  There are no inter-se relationships between Directors of 
the Company.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS  

forwarded to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and published 
in Free Press Journal (English) and Navshakti (Marathi). 
Half yearly report is not sent to each shareholder. 
However, the results of the Company are published in 
the Newspapers.

b) The Company has not made any presentation to any 
institutional investors or to any analysts during the year.

c) Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part 
of the Directors’ Report.

d) The Company has launched its website www.iitlgroup.com. 
Annual Report of the Company shall be available on the 
website in a user friendly and downloadable form. The 
quarterly / half yearly results are also available on the 
Company’s website.

9.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) Annual General Meeting

 Date & Time : Saturday, August 30, 2014 at 2.30 p.m. 

 Venue  : M.C. Ghia Hall, 4th Floor, Bhogilal   
  Hargovindas Building,  
  18/20 K. Dubash Marg, Mumbai 400 001.

 b) Financial Calendar : 2014-2015

 Adoption of Quarterly Results for

 Quarter ending  In the month of

        ------------------   ------------------ 

   (Tentative)

 June 2014 : On or before  
  August 14, 2014

 September 2014 : On or before  
  November 14, 2014

 December 2014 : On or before  
  February 14, 2015

 March 2015      : On or before May 30, 2015 
(Audited annual results)

c) Dividend Payment Date : On or before    
  September 29, 2014

d) Book Closure period :  August 23, 2014 to

     August 30, 2014

e) Listing on Stock : Bombay Stock Exchange 
Exchange   Limited (BSE),

     Dalal Street,  
  Mumbai 400 001

    National Stock Exchange   
  of India Limited (NSE)

    BKC, Bandra (E),  
  Mumbai 400 051 

 Listing fees, as prescribed, have been paid to the BSE 
and NSE up to March 31, 2015.

f) Stock Code at BSE :  501295

 NSE Stock Symbol :  IITL
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g) Stock price data at the BSE and NSE 

Month BSE NSE
High  
(`)

Low  
(`)

Close
(`)

High  
(`)

Low  
(`)

Close
(`)

April, 2013 87.90 77.50 84.00 80.00 70.20 70.20
May, 2013 95.00 86.80 91.10 --* --* --*
June, 2013 95.00 81.00 81.50 93.95 73.65 93.95
July, 2013 89.25 83.10 89.25 --* --* --*
August, 2013 95.50 89.10 95.50 89.30 89.30 89.30
September, 2013 99.90 94.55 94.55 89.30 89.30 89.30
October, 2013 89.85 80.80 86.00 85.00 80.75 80.75
November, 2013 85.00 85.00 85.00 80.75 80.75 80.75
December, 2013 89.25 73.00 73.00 77.80 70.00 70.00
January, 2014 78.00 70.00 70.00 74.00 70.00 71.50
February, 2014 68.00 58.25 63.95 71.00 60.00 63.00
March, 2014 63.75 49.55 57.20 63.00 50.00 56.70

 * There was no trading during the month 
h) Graph 
 Share Price / BSE (Monthly Closing)

 
 Share Price / NSE (Monthly Closing)

 
i) Registrar and Transfer Agents 

Link Intime India Private Limited  
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound 
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West)  
Mumbai 400 078. 
Tel. No.: 022 2596 3838

j) Share Transfer System 
 The transfer of shares held in physical mode is 

processed by Link Intime India Private Limited and is 
approved by the Share Transfer Committee / CEO & 
Company Secretary of the Company as the case may be.  

are dispatched within a period of 15 days from the date 
of receipt, provided that the relevant documents are 
complete in all respects.

k) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2014

Grouping of  
Shares

No. of  
Share-

holders

% of total  
share-

holders

No. of  
Shares per 

Category

% of  
total 

shares
1-500 1578 73.46 266375 1.22
501-1000 228 10.62 199603 0.92
1001-2000 144 6.70 231948 1.06
2001-3000 73 3.40 187797 0.86
3001-4000 22 1.03 79447 0.36
4001-5000 34 1.58 165815 0.76
5001-10000 35 1.63 251065 1.15
10001- 21827550 34 1.58 20445500 93.67
TOTAL 2148 100.00 21827550 100.00

 Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2014

Category No. of 
Shareholders

No. of  
shares held

% of 
shareholding

Promoters 6 8601387 39.41
Foreign Company - - -
Non Resident (Individual 
& Companies)

37 83405 0.38

Foreign Institutional 
Investors

- - -

Insurance Companies 3 1243311 5.70
Financial Institutions / 
Banks

16 69150 0.32

Mutual Funds - - -
Central Government / 
State Government(s)

2 37200 0.17

Resident Individuals  1987 1420424 6.51
Clearing Member 18 7811 0.03
Trusts 5 45500 0.21
Other bodies corporate 73 541812 2.48
Shares held by 
custodians and against 
which Depository 
Receipts have been 
issued

1 9777550 44.79

TOTAL 2148 21827550 100.00
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l) Dematerialisation 

 The Company has entered into agreements with National 
Security Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services Limited for the dematerialisation of shares. 
As on March 31, 2014, a total of 2,09,59,549 shares, 
which forms 96.02% of the share capital of the Company 
stands dematerialized and 8,68,001 shares which forms 
3.98% of the share capital are in physical form.  

m) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any 
convertible instruments 

 (a) The Company had issued 48,88,775 Global 
Depositary Receipts (GDRs), each GDR 
representing two Equity Shares of `10/- each, on 
June 15, 2012. The GDRs issued by the Company 
are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. As 
on March 31, 2014, the total outstanding GDRs 
stood at 48,88,775.

 (b) The Company has converted 10,50,000, 10% 
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
(CCPS) of ` 10/- each out of the outstanding 
17,70,000, 10% CCPS issued and allotted on 
preferential basis to the promoters namely N. N. 
Financial Services Private Limited and Nimbus India 
Limited into 10,50,000 Equity Shares during the 
month of October 2013. The Equity Shares issued 
and allotted as above are listed on Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited and have been admitted to dealings on 
both the Stock Exchanges. As on March 31, 2014, 
the total outstanding CCPS stood at 7,20,000.

n) Plant Location

 The Company does not have a manufacturing plant.

o)  Address for Correspondence
 Shareholders can correspond with the Registrars & 

Company.
 Address of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
 Link Intime India Private Limited 

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound 
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai 400 078. 
Tel. No.: 022 2596 3838

 For the convenience of the investors, transfer requests 

Company.

 14 E Rajabahadur Mansion, 2nd Floor 
28, Bombay Samachar Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

 Contact Person
 Ms. Cumi Banerjee - CEO & Company Secretary 

Tel. No.:  022 2266 5453 / 022 4325 0100

Agreement relating to Corporate Governance is published as an 
annexure to the Directors’ Report.
Declaration on Compliance with Code of Conduct

management personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct 

been obtained from the directors and senior management. 
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. B. Samal 
  Chairman   

    (DIN: 00007256)
Place : Mumbai 
Date: July 25, 2014
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED, for the year 
ended 31st March, 2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been limited to a 
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the 

the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made by the 
Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreements. 

with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Registration No. 117365W)

Uday Neogi
Partner

(Membership No. 30235)
MUMBAI: 25th July, 2014



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

22

INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014, the 

policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation 

under the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) (which continue to be 
applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
in terms of  General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs) and in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal controls 
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st  March, 2014;

the Company for the year ended on that date and

the Company for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2.28 of the financial statements.  

the Company, as at 31st March 2014 has substantially eroded. 
However, the Management of the Company is of the view, for the 
reasons stated in the Note, that there is no diminution other than 

as at 31st March, 2014.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2003(“the Order”) issued by the Central  Government in terms of 
Section 227(4A) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement 

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

agreement with the books of account.

to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated  
13th September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs).

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on 31st March, 2014 taken on record by 

as on 31st March, 2014 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Act.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
            Chartered Accountants

 Uday Neogi
  Partner

  Membership No. 30325
MUMBAI, 20th May, 2014



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

24

(i) Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/
activities/results during the year, clauses ii, vi, viii, x, xi, xii,  
xiii, xvi and xix of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 

year by the Management in accordance with a regular 
programme of verification which, in our opinion, 

reasonable intervals.  According to the information and 
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were 

assets of the Company and such disposal has, in our 
opinion, not affected the going concern status of the 
Company.

(iii) In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the 

Register maintained under Section 301 of the Act, according 
to the information and explanations given to us:

(a) The Company has granted loans aggregating  
`

year-end, the outstanding balances of such loans 
granted aggregated `

the maximum amount involved during the year was  
` 685,654,661 (six parties).

(b) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of 
such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie not prejudicial 
to the interest of the Company.

(c) The receipts of principal amounts and interest have been 
regular/as per stipulations.

(d) There is no overdue amount in excess of ` 1 lakh 
remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

 The Company has not taken any loans, secured or 
unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the Register maintained under Section 301 
of the Act and accordingly, clauses (f) and (g) of the 
paragraph 4(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control 
system commensurate with the size of the company and 

assets and for the sale of services. The company does not 
purchase inventory nor does it sell goods in the ordinary 
course of business.  During the course of our audit, we have 
not observed any major weakness in such internal control 
system.

(v) In respect of contracts or arrangements entered in the Register 
maintained in pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according 
to the information and explanations given to us:

(a)  The particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to 
in Section 301 that needed to be entered in the Register 
maintained under the said Section have been so entered.

(b)   Where each of such transactions is in excess of ̀  5 lakhs 
in respect of any party, the transactions have been made 
at prices which are prima facie reasonable having regard 
to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time. 

(vi) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 
business.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing 

Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 
authorities. There have been no dues payable in respect 
of Employees’ State Insurance, Sales Tax, Excise Duty 
and Customs Duty during the year on account of their 
non-applicability to the Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 
2014 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess 
which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2014 
on account of disputes are given below:

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Statute Nature of 
Dues

Forum 
where 

Dispute is 
pending

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Amount 
involved 

(`)

The Income-
tax Act,1961

Income 
tax

Income-tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal

A.Y.
1996-97

1,004,643

The Income-
tax Act,1961

Income
tax

Commissioner 
of Income-tax 

(Appeals)

A.Y. 
2008-09

490,257

The Wealth 
tax Act,1957

Wealth 
tax

High Court, 
Mumbai

A.Y. 
1997-98

3,250,246

(viii) Based on our examination of the records and evaluations of 
the related internal controls, the Company has maintained 
proper records of the transactions and contracts in respect 
of its dealing in shares, securities, debentures and other 
investments and timely entries have been made therein. The 
aforesaid securities have been held by the Company in its 
own name. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the 
guarantees given by the Company for loans taken by others 
from banks are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interests of 
the Company.

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the 
Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised 
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during 
the year for long-term investment.                                                                              

(xi) During the year the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares to the parties and companies covered in 
the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

(xii) The Management has disclosed the end use of money raised 

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no 
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Registration No.117365W) 

Uday Neogi
Partner

(Membership No.30325)
MUMBAI, 20th May, 2014         
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2014

Particulars  Note No. As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2.1  225,475,500  225,475,500 
Reserves and surplus 2.2  5,100,823,452  5,000,373,303 

 5,326,298,952  5,225,848,803 

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 2.3  -    611,304 

 -    611,304 
Current liabilities

Trade payables 2.4  1,425,686  1,864,467 
Other current liabilities 2.5  4,588,502  19,286,327 
Short-term provisions 2.6  48,159,014  38,946,851 

 5,41,73,202  6,00,97,645 

TOTAL  5,380,472,154  5,286,557,752 

ASSETS

Non-current assets
2.7  5,237,224  5,737,519 

Non-current investments 2.8  4,536,367,798  1,143,251,392 
Deferred tax assets (net) 2.3  1,712,144  -   

2.9  24,416,845  2,526,372,734 
 4,567,734,011  3,675,361,645 

Current assets
Current investments 2.10  -    273,466,517 
Cash and Bank balances 2.11  118,523,519  692,483,441 
Short-term loans and advances 2.12  690,948,207  633,977,821 
Other current assets 2.13  3,266,417  11,268,328 

 812,738,143  1,611,196,107 

TOTAL  5,380,472,154  5,286,557,752 

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants
DR. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Executive Chairman Director 

UDAY NEOGI CUMI BANERJEE
Partner CEO & Company Secretary

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014 Mumbai: 20th May, 2014
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants
DR. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Executive Chairman Director 

UDAY NEOGI CUMI BANERJEE
Partner CEO & Company Secretary

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014 Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

Particulars Note No. Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013

 `  ` 
Revenue from operations 2.14  201,904,551  144,497,397 
Other income 2.15  779,033  444,001 

Total Revenue  202,683,584  144,941,398 

2.16  10,711,087  9,553,109 
 Interest on income-tax  450,540  -   
 Depreciation expense 
    - on investment property  9,517  10,019 

2.7  838,745  920,531 
 Other expenses 2.17  13,588,297  16,347,647 
 Write-down in value of current investments  -    149,378 
 Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments  7,200,000  8,600,000 
 Net loss on sale of current investments  794,994  -   
 Contingent provision against standard assets  120,000  951,000 

 -    1,307,910 
Total expenses  33,713,181  37,839,594 

168,970,403 107,101,804

Tax expense:
   (a) Current tax  49,300,000 32,600,000

 (18,200,000)  (11,100,000)
   (c) Net current tax expense 31,100,000 21,500,000
   (d) Deferred tax 2.3  (2,323,448)  (38,000)

28,776,552 21,462,000

140,193,851 85,639,804
Earnings per share: 2.22
Basic  6.53  4.73 
Diluted  6.22  4.50 

`)  10.00  10.00 
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 Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013

 `  ` 
 A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 168,970,403  107,101,804 

 Adjustments for: 
 838,745  920,531 

 Depreciation on investment property  9,517  10,019 
 Interest income  (142,851,849)  (111,097,635)

 -    (6,742)
 18,940  -   

 (774,993)  -   
 Interest on income tax  450,540  -   
 Provision for compensated absences  249,997  -   
 Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments   7,200,000  8,600,000 
 Contingent provision against standard assets  120,000  951,000 
 Provision for write-down in value of current investments  -    149,378 

 -    (1,340,413)
 794,994  (2,439,721)
 48,837  -   

 35,075,132  2,848,222 

 Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets: 
 Short-term loans and advances  (684,107)  8,064,827 

 3,944,297  7,201,596 
 Dividend Account balance with banks  (145,270)  (550,953)
 Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities: 
 Trade payables  336,212  980,809 
 Other current liabilities  (14,843,095)  118,633 

 Other adjustments : 
 Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents 
    - Placed  (6,936,008,642)  (13,415,712,458)
    - Matured  7,507,822,321  12,763,866,163 
 Purchase of long-term investments:  -   
   - Subsidiaries   -    (350,000,000)
   - Associates  -    (250,000,000)

 (900,000,000)  -   
   - Others  -    (12,128,800)
 Sale of long-term investments: 
   - Others  -    2,858,377 
 Purchase of current investments:  (35,000,000)  (580,629,885)
 Sale of current investments   307,296,763  309,453,710 
 Amount paid for acquiring equity shares [See Note 2.9a]  -    (2,500,000,000)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014 (Contd.)

  - Subsidiaries   (50,000,000)  (30,000,000)
  - Associates  (385,000,000)  (340,000,000)

  - Subsidiaries   50,000,000  -   
  - Associates  227,500,000  -   
  - Others  100,000,000  -   
 Interest received from: 
  - Subsidiaries  17,297,752  7,677,042 
  - Associates 62,694,720 35,463,288
  - Others 70,861,289 57,908,859

 61,147,372  (4,282,580,571)
 Net income tax paid  (32,299,727)  (22,789,622)
 Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)  28,847,645  (4,305,370,193)

 B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 (357,391)  (1,193,266)

 -    280,000 
 Net cash used in investing activities (B)  (357,391)  (913,266)

 C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Issue of equity shares (including GDS)  -    3,354,044,941 
 Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)  -    957,918,029 
 Dividend and Tax on Dividend paid  (30,781,766)  (16,882,046)

 (30,781,766)  4,295,080,924 

  Net decrease in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (2,291,512)  (11,202,536)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  17,081,508  28,284,044 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (See Note 2.11)  14,789,996  17,081,508

Note: 

1 activities.
2

3

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants
DR. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Executive Chairman Director 

UDAY NEOGI CUMI BANERJEE
Partner CEO & Company Secretary

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014 Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

 Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013

 `  ` 
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1.1 Corporate Information     

statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

1956 Act”) (which continue to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) in terms 
of  General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs) and the relevant provisions of 

Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.       

(B) Use of estimates:     

and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported 

the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.
(C ) Revenue Recognition:     

proportionate basis.     
(b)  Rental income is accrued on the basis of the agreement.
(c) Dividend is accounted when the right to receive payment is established.

of investments and is recognised on the basis of contract notes.

by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.    

Account”, represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of Equity Stock 

for as follows:   

the difference between settlement/ squaring-up price and contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance 

is outstanding at the time of the squaring up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so squared up 

representing additional margin paid over and above the initial margin, for entering into contracts for Equity 

   

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

other attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
(E) Depreciation:

the Companies Act, 1956.    

temporary for which provision is made. 
 Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.
 Investment properties are carried individually at cost less accumulated depreciation. Investment properties are capitalised 

(G) Taxation:
 Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid  to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961.

adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future 

 Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the accounting 
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  Deferred tax is measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.   Deferred tax liabilities are 
recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of items other than unabosrbed 

will be available against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of 

available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied 
by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for their realisability.

(H) Provisions and contingencies:
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 

required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1. :               

provident and family pension fund, in which both employees and the Company makes monthly contributions
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2. :   
i. Gratuity    

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. 

value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the 
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

ii.  Compensated absences   
 The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The 

Employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment/availment. 
The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an actuarial valuation carried out 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to reporting currency based on the exchange rate on the date of the 
transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement thereof during the year are recognized as income or expense in 

 Cash and bank balances, receivables and liabilities (monetary items) in foreign currencies as at the year end are translated 

 Share issue expenses are adjusted against Securities Premium Account in terms of Section 78 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956.
(M) Earnings per share     

preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) 
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares 

be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity 
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market 
value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 
The number of  equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and 
bonus shares, as appropriate.      

 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

information.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.1 Share Capital 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Authorised
30,000,000 (previous year 30,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each with voting rights  300,000,000  300,000,000 
5,000,000 (previous year 5,000,000) Preference shares of ` 10 each.  50,000,000  50,000,000 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
21,827,550 (previous year 20,777,550) Equity shares of ` 10 each with voting rights  218,275,500  207,775,500 
[Included above are 9,777,550 (Previous year: 9,777,550) equity shares] represented by 
4,888,775 (Previous year: 4,888,775) Global Depository Shares (“GDS”)

(CCPS) of ` 10 each fully paid-up
 7,200,000  17,700,000 

Total  225,475,500  225,475,500 
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity Shares  As at 31st March, 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
 No. of shares `  No. of shares  ` 

Opening Balance  20,777,550  207,775,500  10,000,000  100,000,000 
Add:- Issued during the year  -    -    9,777,550  97,775,500 
Add:- Conversion of CCPS to equity shares  1,050,000  10,500,000  1,000,000  10,000,000 
Closing balance  21,827,550  218,275,500  20,777,550  207,775,500 

equity shares of the Company of nominal value ̀ 10 each, aggregating to US $ 59.89 millions equivalent to ` 3,377,606,725 
(including share premium of `

10% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
 No. of shares  `  No. of shares  ` 

Opening Balance  1,770,000  17,700,000  -    -   
Add:- Issued during the year  -    -    2,770,000  27,700,000 

 1,050,000  10,500,000  1,000,000  10,000,000 
Closing balance  720,000  7,200,000  1,770,000  17,700,000 

` 10 
each on a preferential basis to companies in the promoter group at a price of ` 350/- per share. The closing balance of 
720,000 CCPS shall be converted to equity shares on April 3, 2014.

(b)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares    
 Equity shares of the company are issued at a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 

vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation 
of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after payment of 
all claims/liabilities and preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.    

(c) Global Depository Shares (GDS):- Holders of the GDSs will have no voting rights with respect to the underlying equity 
shares. The Depository will not exercise any voting rights with respect to the deposited shares. Other rights, preferences 
and restrictions are same as equity shares.

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares    
 The Preference Shares shall rank for capital and dividend (including all dividends undeclared upto the commencement 

of winding up) and for repayment of capital in a winding up pari pasu inter se and in priority to the Equity Shares of 

Convertible Preference Shares(CCPS) are convertible into Equity Shares of face value of ` 10 each, any time within  
18 months from the date of allotment, in one or more tranches at a price of ` 350 including premium of ` 340 per share. 
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2.1 Share Capital (Contd.)
(e) Equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company are as follows:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

 6,637,960  30.42  5,787,960  27.86 
 1,913,427  8.77  1,713,427  8.25 
 1,225,017  5.61  1,225,017  5.90 

The Bank of New York Mellon (for GDS holders)  9,777,550  44.79  9,777,550  47.06 
(f)  Preference shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Preference shares in the Company are as follows:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

 450,000  62.50  1,300,000  73.45 
 270,000  37.50  470,000  26.55 

(g)  Disclosure required in terms of Clause 13.5A of Chapter XIII on Guidelines for preferential issues, SEBI (Disclosure 
and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000    

(i)  Regarding issue of preference shares:

Particulars During the year ended
31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Total amount received from issue of CCPS, issued at the price of ` 350 including 
share premium of ` 340 each

 -    969,500,000 

Unutilised monies as on April 1, 2013  277,918,029  -   
Purpose for which the money received has been utilized :

 250,000,000  340,000,000 
 -    350,000,000 

 20,000,000  -   
d.  Direct Expenses incurred towards the CCPS Issue  -    1,581,971 

 270,000,000  691,581,971 

Unutilised monies  7,918,029  277,918,029 
 Balance amount of ` 

(ii)  Regarding issue of Global Depository Shares: 
Particulars During the year ended

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

Total amount received from issue of GDS -  3,377,606,725 
Unutilised monies as on April 1, 2013  594,044,940  -   
Purpose for which the money received has been utilized :

 594,044,940  2,500,000,000 

 -    250,000,000 
c.  Direct Expenses incurred towards the GDS Issue  -    33,561,785 

 594,044,940  2,783,561,785 
Unutilised monies  -    594,044,940 

Balance amount of ` 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 
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2.2 Reserves and surplus 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013

 `  ` 
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  750  750 
Securities Premium Account
Opening balance  4,186,487,469  -   
Add : Premium on issue of GDS  -    3,279,831,225 

Add : Premium on issue of CCPS  -    941,800,000 

Utilised for :

Writing off GDS issue expenses  -    33,561,785 #

Writing off CCPS issue expenses  -    1,581,971 

Closing balance  4,186,487,469  4,186,487,469 
General Reserve
Opening balance  175,028,048  170,746,058 

Add:  10,514,539  4,281,990 

Closing balance  185,542,587  175,028,048 
Special Reserve (as per the RBI regulations)
Opening balance  275,086,961  257,959,000 

Add:  28,038,770  17,127,961 

Closing balance  303,125,731  275,086,961 

Opening balance  363,770,077  335,723,307 

Add: 140,193,851  85,639,804 

Add: Reversal of excess tax on dividend  5,256,050*  -   
Dividend proposed to be distributed to equity shareholders (` 1.75  per share, 
previous year ` 1.50 per share)  37,135,986  29,703,311 

Dividend proposed to be distributed to CCPS shareholders (` 1.00 per share, 
previous year ` 1.00 per share)  1,326,986  1,223,726 

Tax on dividend  6,536,782  5,256,050 

Transferred to:

- General Reserve  10,514,539  4,281,990 

- Special Reserve  28,038,770  17,127,961 

Closing balance  425,666,915  363,770,073 

Total  5,100,823,452  5,000,373,303

*   Reversal of excess tax on dividend on account of dividend received from a subsidiary company on which dividend tax is paid by 

#   Includes ` 1,668,920 paid to the Statutory Auditors towards professional services provided by them in connection with the issue 
of GDS.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.3 Deferred tax liabilities

Nature of timing difference Deferred tax  
assets/ (liabilities)    

As at  
31st March, 2013

(Charge) /  
credit  
for the  

current year

Deferred tax  
assets/ (liabilities)    

As at  
31st March, 2014

` ` `

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation  (972,568)  89,997  (882,571)
Deferred tax assets:
Disallowances under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961  361,264  120,973  482,237 
Provision for doubtful loans  -  1,529,550  1,529,550 
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets  -  582,929  582,929 
Net Amount  (611,304)  2,323,448  1,712,144 

2.4 Trade payables 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
` `

Trade payables:
Other than Acceptances  1,425,686  1,864,467 

Total  1,425,686  1,864,467 

 There are no amounts due to the suppliers covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; This 
information takes into account only those suppliers who have responded to the enquiries made by the Company for this purpose. 
This has been relied upon by the auditors.

2.5 Other current liabilities 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
` `

Unclaimed dividends *  4,129,452  3,984,182 
Other payables:

 379,010  324,007 
   Security deposits received  -    13,659,845 
   Advances from subsidiaries  80,040  -   
   Rent received in advance  -    1,309,568 
   Others  -    8,725 

Total  4,588,502  19,286,327 

2.6 Short term provisions

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
` `

   Compensated absences  1,418,761  1,168,764 
Provison - Others:
   Income tax [ net of advance tax ` 25,744,501 (previous year ` Nil)]  25,499  -   
   Contingent Provision against Standard Assets  1,715,000  1,595,000 
   Proposed equity dividend  37,135,986  29,703,311 
   Proposed preference dividend  1,326,986  1,223,726 
   Tax on proposed dividend  6,536,782  5,256,050 

Total  48,159,014  38,946,851 
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 2.8  Non-current investments 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
` ` `

(I) Trade Investments-(valued at cost) [See Note 2.8 (a)]
(A) Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up):

- of subsidiaries
-  quoted  136,123,073  136,123,073 
-  unquoted  143,910,000  143,910,000 

 280,033,073  280,033,073 
-  of associate, unquoted  155,181,250  155,181,250 
-  of joint venture, unquoted [See Note 2.9 (a)]  3,400,000,000  -   

Total (A)  3,835,214,323  435,214,323 

(B)  Investment in Preference Shares (fully paid-up)  
[See Note 2.8 (a)]
-  of subsidiary

Preference shares, unquoted  350,000,000  350,000,000 

-  of associate

shares, unquoted  250,000,000  250,000,000 

Total (B)  600,000,000  600,000,000 

 Total - Trade (A)+(B)  4,435,214,323  1,035,214,323 
(II)  Other investments
 Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up): 

- of other entities, quoted  [See Note 2.8 (a)]  186,536,162  186,210,239 
 (85,563,526)  (78,363,526)

 100,972,636  107,846,713 
Investment property  
(valued at cost less accumulated depreciation) 
Immovable property (cost)  1,069,071  1,069,071 

 (888,232)  (878,715)
 180,839  190,356 

Total Other Investments  101,153,475  108,037,069 

Total  4,536,367,798  1,143,251,392 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (net of provision)  237,095,709  243,969,786 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  95,540,486  132,454,270 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  4,299,091,250  899,091,250 
Investment property  180,839  190,356 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.8 (a) Details of Non-current investments

 Name of the Company 
Face Value   As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013 
per Share Holding Holding 

` Nos.  ` Nos.  ` 
 (I)  Trade Investments 

 (A) Investment in Equity Instruments: 
-  of subsidiaries 
-  quoted 

 10  3,580,347  136,123,073  3,580,347  136,123,073 
-  unquoted

 10  12,375,000  117,410,000  12,375,000  117,410,000 
 10  2,500,000  25,000,000  2,500,000  25,000,000 
 10  150,000  1,500,000  150,000  1,500,000 

 143,910,000  143,910,000 
Sub-total  280,033,073  280,033,073 

 -  of associate, unquoted
 10  13,018,125  155,181,250  13,018,125  155,181,250 

 -  of joint venture, unquoted [See Note 2.9 (a) and 2.28] 
 10  326,700,000  3,400,000,000  -    -   

Total (A)  3,835,214,323  435,214,323 
(B) Investment in Preference Shares:

-  of subsidiary, unquoted
 10  7,000,000  350,000,000  7,000,000  350,000,000 

-  of associate, unquoted
 10  5,000,000  250,000,000  5,000,000  250,000,000 

Total (B)  600,000,000  600,000,000 
Total - Trade (A)+(B)  4,435,214,323  1,035,214,323 

 (II) Other investments 
Investment in Equity Instruments 
-  of other entities, quoted

 5  10,000  4,305,646  10,000  4,305,646 
 2  10,000  4,416,095  10,000  4,416,095 
 10  2,500  952,940  2,500  952,940 
 1  19,900  1,655,595  19,900  1,655,595 
 1  9,450  427,825  9,450  427,825 
 10  14,895  2,450,912  14,895  2,450,912 
 2  7,500  1,302,927  7,500  1,302,927 
 10  30,000  2,801,128  30,000  2,801,128 
 10  2,000  2,006,929  2,000  2,006,929 
 10  8,700  1,943,994  8,700  1,943,994 
 1  6,080  9,04,607  6,080  904,607 
 10  100,000  3,425,126  100,000  3,425,126 
 1  4,500  4,588,256  4,500  4,588,256 
 10  9,995  14,851,359  9,995  14,851,359 
 5  175,000  45,671,012  175,000  45,671,012 
 10  4,912  10,037,676  4,912  10,037,676 
 5  10,000  36,68,331  10,000  36,68,331 
 5  10,000  1,794,343  10,000  1,794,343 
 10  100,000  21,886,285  100,000  21,886,285 
 10  547,677  22,685,544  547,677  22,685,544 
 2  558,825  33,289,000  558,825  33,289,000 
 10  893  806,572  893  806,572 
 5  800  338,137  800  338,137 
 10  1,200  325,923  -    -   

Total  186,536,162  186,210,239 

date. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.9  Long-term loans and advances (considered good, unless otherwise stated)   

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
` `

Unsecured:

Amount paid for acquiring equity shares [See Note (a) below]  -    2,500,000,000 

Security deposits  8,377,936  12,332,960 

Debit balance in gratuity fund  476,521  465,794 

Advance payment of income tax [net of provisions ` 102,152,000 (As at 31st March, 
2013 ` 49,552,000)]  15,562,388  13,573,980 

 4,500,000  4,500,000 

 (4,500,000)  (4,500,000)

 -    -   

Total  24,416,845  2,526,372,734 

(a)  Share purchase agreement:    

` 250 crores.  Pursuant to 
the approval received from Competition Commission of India (CCI), Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Insurance Regulatory 
and Development Authority (IRDA), transaction has been consummated on December 17, 2013 for a total consideration of 
` 340 crores.

2.10  Current investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value)

Particulars
 As at  

31st March, 2014
As at  

31st March, 2013
 `  ` 

Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up) [See Note 2.10 (a)]

-of other entities, quoted  -    524,138 

 -   (149,378)

 -    374,760 

Investment in Mutual Funds [See Note 2.10 (a)]

 -    273,091,757 

  Total  -    273,466,517 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (net of provision)  -    374,760 

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments  -    374,760 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    273,091,757 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.10 (a) Details of current investments   

Name of the Company  Face Value    As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013
 per Share  Holding  Holding 

 ` Nos.   `   Nos.   ` 

Investment in Equity Instruments:

- of other entities, quoted

 10  -    1,200 374,760

   Total   -   374,760

Investment in Mutual Funds: 

  - units of Mutual Funds, unquoted

Dividend - Reinvestment 
 1,000  -    100,997  52,415,004 

 
-Daily Dividend Plan 

 1,000  -    101,075  107,838,084 

 
-Daily Dividend   

 1,000  -    101,047  112,838,669 

  Total   -    273,091,757 

    

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014 

 As at  
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  31,192  12,251 

Cheques on hand  -    10,720,272 

Balances with banks

- In current accounts  3,258,804  6,348,985 

- In deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 months  11,500,000  -   

 14,789,996  17,081,508 

- In deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than

   or equal to 12 months  99,604,072  671,417,752 

- In earmarked accounts - unpaid dividend accounts  4,129,451  3,984,181 

 103,733,523  675,401,933 

 Total   118,523,519  692,483,441 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.12  Short-term loans and advances (unsecured, considered good) 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 

Loans and advances to related parties [See Note 2.23]

Standard Assets -

 100,000,000  100,000,000 

 565,000,000  427,500,000 

 20,000,000  -   

Advances to subsidiaries  58,915  657,233 

 685,058,915  528,157,233 

Other loans and advances 
Security deposits  4,106,424  4,311,624 

 -    100,000,000 

Prepaid expenses  329,521  176,216 

Advances to vendors  1,453,347  119,027 

Advance payment of income tax  
[net of provision ` Nil (As at 31st March 2013 ` 47,300,000)]

 -    1,213,721 

 5,889,292  105,820,588 

Total  690,948,207  633,977,821 

2.13 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Interest accrued on 
- bank deposits  2,611,756  1,795,230 

- loans (Standard Assets)  654,661  9,473,098 

Total  3,266,417  11,268,328 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.14 Revenue from operations

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2014
Year ended 

31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

 Interest [See Note 2.14 (a)]  142,851,849  111,097,635 
 43,464,617  17,684,946 

 Other operating income [See Note 2.14 (c)]  15,588,085  15,714,816 
Total  201,904,551  144,497,397 

2.14 (a)  Interest

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2014
Year ended 

31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

 Interest: 
 - On deposits with banks  56,669,381  58,484,210 
 - On loans   86,182,468  52,613,425 

Total  142,851,849  111,097,635 

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2014
Year ended 

31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

 Dividend income on long-term investments: 
 37,500,000  -   

 365,976  449,073 
 Dividend income on current investments  5,598,642  13,455,739 

 -    1,340,413 
 -    2,439,721 

Total  43,464,617  17,684,946 
2.14 (c)  Other operating income

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2014
Year ended 

31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

 Rent on immovable property  15,588,085  15,714,816 
Total  15,588,085  15,714,816 

2.15  Other income

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2014
Year ended 

31st March, 2013 
 `  ` 

 774,993  -   
 -    6,742 

 Others   4,040  437,259 
Total  779,033  444,001 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Salaries and bonus 9,518,766  8,557,989 
Contribution to provident and other funds [See Note 2.21] 852,487  667,063 
Staff welfare expenses  339,834  328,057 

Total  10,711,087  9,553,109 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 
2.17  Other expenses

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Power and fuel (net of recovery ` 511,533; previous year ` 594,037)  1,016,601  975,086 
Rent including lease rentals (net of recovery ` 1,000,000 ; previous year ` 1,320,000) 
[See Note 2.24 (a)]

 1,824,367  962,700 

Repairs and Maintenance:
 -Buildings (net of recovery ` 1,000,000 ; previous year ` 1,320,000)  1,315,000  1,016,564 
 -Others  941,434  619,221 

 2,256,434  1,635,785 
Insurance  33,432  41,669 
Rates and taxes  -    17,190 
Communication expenses (net of recovery ` 23,492 ; previous year `  20,086)  265,919  347,266 
Travelling and conveyance  1,080,272  2,501,160 
Printing and stationery  221,310  248,627 
Business promotion  357,697  787,121 

 1,298,322  2,574,031 
Payment to auditors [See Note 2.17 (a) below]  1,505,624  1,546,793 

 18,940  -   
Directors' fees  1,438,208  1,978,180 
Membership fees  569,928  1,597,838 

 48,837  -   
Miscellaneous expenditure 1,652,406  1,134,201 

Total  13,588,297  16,347,647 

2.17 (a) Payments to the auditors 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
 350,000  350,000 
 990,000  1,005,000 

Reimbursement of expenses  -    24,311 
Service tax  165,624  167,482 

Total  1,505,624  1,546,793 

2.18 Contingent liabilities and commitments not provided for

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
(i) Contingent liabilities:
(a)

- Disputed income-tax matters in appeal  1,31,01,449  1,18,63,325 
- Disputed wealth-tax matter in appeal 32,50,246 32,50,246
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

(b) Guarantees
Guarantees given to banks on behalf of associate company 25,34,00,000 25,34,00,000
The Company has received counter-guarantees from other parties amounting to ` 190,050,000 (previous year ` 190,050,000) 
against the aforesaid guarantees given by the Company to the banks. 

(ii) Commitments:
(a) Other Commitments

Non-cancellable contractual commitments - See Note 2.24

Particulars Balance as at Maximum balance outstanding  
during the year ended

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2014
` `

Subsidiary:
 100,000,000  100,000,000 

(100,000,000) (100,000,000)
Associates:

20,000,000 20,000,000
(-) (-)

227,500,000 227,500,000
(127,500,000) (127,500,000)

172,500,000 300,000,000
(300,000,000) (300,000,000)

150,000,000 250,000,000
(-) (-)

15,000,000 15,000,000
(-) (-)

 
      (a) no repayment schedule or repayment is beyond seven years or  
      (b) no interest or interest is below rates stipulated in Section 372A of the Companies Act, 1956:

2500,000 2500,000
(2,500,000) (2,500,000)

2,000,000 20,00,000
(2,000,000) (2,000,000)

 * The amount has been provided in earlier years. There is no repayment schedule nor has any interest been charged.

2.20 Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 

Business promotion expenses  -    91,066 
Total  -    91,066 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

(a)        

and other funds in Note 2.16 for the year are as under:

Particulars 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 
` `

 570,466  513,558 
 57,574  53,970 

(b)        

plan are typically based on years of service and the employees compensation covering all regular employees. Commitments are 

is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The Company makes annual contribution to the group 

Particulars Gratuity (funded)
31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

` `

i
 1,214,994  984,199 

Interest Cost                                   97,200  78,736 
Current Service Cost                    252,988  235,471 

 -    -   
 25,444  (83,412)

 1,590,626  1,214,994 

ii Reconciliation of fair value of Plan Assets
 1,680,788  1,519,032 

Expected return on Plan Assets  151,185  131,260 
 6,597  -   

Employer's Contribution  228,577  30,496 
 -    -   

 2,067,147  1,680,788 

The major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of the fair value of total Plan Assets are as follows:
Bank Balance 

Corporation of India) and hence the disclosure thereof is not made.

iii Net assets / (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet
 (1,590,626)  (1,214,994)

 2,067,147  1,680,788 
Net assets recognised in the Balance Sheet  476,521  465,794 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

Particulars Gratuity (funded)
31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

` `

iv Components of Employer’s Expenses
Current Service Cost                      252,988  235,471 
Interest Cost                                    97,200  78,736 
Expected return on Plan Assets  (151,185)  (131,260)

 25,444  (83,412)

provident and other funds' in Note 2.16)  224,447  99,535 

Actual return on Plan Assets  151,185  131,260 

Estimated contribution in the next year  170,000  225,000 

v Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality Table
Indian Assured 

(2006-08) Ult

 
(1994-96) 
(Ultimate)

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets
Salary escalation 

and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
 b. The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms consistent with 

 c. Expected rate of return on assets is determined based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on 
investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

vii Experience adjustment:

Gratuity (Funded)
31st March,  

2014
31st March, 

2013
31st March, 

2012
31st March,  

2011
31st March,  

2010
` ` ` ` `

 1,590,626  1,214,994  984,199  770,309  571,821 
 2,067,147  16,80,788  1,519,032  1,218,202  840,974 

 476,521  465,794  534,833  447,893  269,153 
4.  Net Asset  476,521  465,794  534,833  447,893  269,153 
5.  Experience adjustment arising on:

 25,444  (83,412)  (59,644)  (55,540)  46,798 
 29,784  9,737  20,174  9,804  5,639 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.22 Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 

140,193,851  85,639,805 

1,552,508  1,431,698 

(c) Net amount available for equity shareholders  138,641,344  84,208,106 

(d) Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic Earnings per share (Nos.)  21,220,564  17,793,122 

(e) Effect of weighted average of potential equity shares on conversion of CCPS (Nos.)  1,326,986  1,223,726 

(f) Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted Earnings per share (Nos.)  22,547,550  19,016,848 

` 10/-)  6.53  4.73 

(h) Diluted Earnings per share  6.22  4.50 

2.23 Related party disclosures:

(i)  Names of related parties:

(a)  Names of related parties and nature of related party relationship where control exists are as under:

 
 (w.e.f. 17th December, 2013)

(b)  Names of other related parties and nature of relationship where there are transactions with related parties:

 Key management personnel:  Dr. B. Samal, Executive Chairman

 Entities over which the company  

(ii)  Transactions with related parties:

(a)  Key management personnel:

Sr. No. Nature of transactions `

(A) Remuneration paid to Dr. B. Samal 3,341,667
(2,352,000)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.23 Related party disclosures: (contd)
(b)  Other related parties:

Sr.
No.

Nature of transactions Subsidiary 
companies

Associate 
company

Entities under 

` ` `

(A)
 -   

(30,000,000)
50,000,000

(-)
 100,000,000 
(35,000,000)

 -   
(205,000,000)
 250,000,000 

(-)
 20,000,000 

 (-)
 15,000,000 

(-)
(B) Refund of loans given

 50,000,000 
(-)

127,500,000
(-)

 100,000,000 
(-)

(C) Interest income
 12,591,782 

(10,328,219)
 2,054,795 

(-)
 17,502,739 

(12,952,603)
 29,995,890 

(22,510,686)
 14,157,534 

(-)
 1,123,425 

(-)
 569,795 

(-)
(D) Dividend received

 37,500,000 
(-)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.23 Related party disclosures: (contd)

Sr.
No.

Nature of transactions Subsidiary 
companies

Associate 
company

Entities under 

` ` `

(E) Investments in preference shares
 -   

(350,000,000)
 -   

(250,000,000)
Investments in Equity shares

 -   
(155,181,250)

(G) Reimbursement of Rent expenses from
 300,000 

(300,000)
 300,000 

(300,000)
 400,000 

(720,000)
(H) Reimbursement of Repair & Maintenance expenses from

 300,000 
(300,000)
 300,000 

(300,000)
 400,000 

(720,000)
(I) Reimbursement of communication expenses from

 5,827 
(5,022)
 5,827 

(5,022)
 11,838 

(10,042)
Reimbursement of Power and fuel from

 153,814 
(148,510)
 153,814 

(148,510)
 203,905 

(297,017)
(K) Rent Expenses

541,667
(-)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

2.23 Related party disclosures: (contd)

(iii) Balances at year-end

Sr.
No.

Nature of transactions Subsidiary 
companies

Associate 
company

Entities under 

` ` `

(A) Amount  receivable as at year-end
 29,999 

(441,389)
 100,028,916 
(10,086,800)

 -   
(192,600)

 227,500,000 
(127,500,000)
 172,500,000 

(300,000,000)
 150,000,000 

(-)
 20,654,661 

(-)
 15,000,000 

(-)
(B) Amount payable as at year-end

 80,040 
(-)

2.24 Details of leasing arrangements    

is ` 1,824,367 (previous year: ` 962,700). [net of recoveries  ` 1,000,000 (previous year:  ` 1,320,000)]

 The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2014

Year ended 
31st March, 2013 

 `  ` 
Not later than one year  3,782,700  2,282,700 

 2,885,900  3,043,600 
 -    -   

Total  6,668,600  5,326,300 

2.25 Interest in joint ventures

 The Company has interests in the following joint ventures:

Sr. No. Name of joint venture and country of incorporation % of interest 
1  22.50



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

52

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.) 

 Financial interest of the company in jointly controlled entities is as under:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount of interest based on the audited  
accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2014

`

1 Assets  5,712,460,552 
2  5,152,691,936 
3 Income  732,701,361 
4 Expenditure  812,310,910 
5 Contingent liabilities  1,281,600 
6 Capital commitments  212,175 

125/03.05.002/2008-09.    
 

Items  As at
31-Mar-14

 As at
31-Mar-13

 87.69  124.60 
 87.58  124.56 
 0.12  0.04

2.26 (b) Exposure to Real Estate Sector  

Category 2013-14 2012-13
i) Direct Exposure
Residential Mortgages - Nil Nil

by the borrower or that is rented:
-Individual housing loans up to `15 lakh Nil Nil
-Individual housing loans above `15 lakh Nil Nil

Commercial Real Estate - Nil Nil

space, multipurpose commercial buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, multi-
family residential premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, 

Investments in Mortgage Backed
Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
1. Residential Nil Nil
2. Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil

ii) Indirect Exposure
Nil Nil

exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)

 Note: The Company has given unsecured short term loans to its subsidiary and joint ventures of that subsidiary  engaged in 
real estate business of construction of residential complexes which are not covered by the above mentioned categories. The 
outstanding balance of such loans is ` 650,000,000 (Previous year ` 527,500,000).



Industrial Investment Trust Limited
Annual Report 2013-2014

53

 2.26 (c)

Particulars Liabilities Assets
Borrowing 

Borrowing
Advances Investments

1 day to 30/31 days (One month)  -    -    -    100,972,636 

Over one month to 2 months  -    -    -    -   

Over 2 months upto 3 months  -    -    -    -   

Over 3 months to 6 months  -    -    -    -   

Over 6 months to 1 year  -    -    685,000,000 -

Over 1 year to 3 years  -    -    -    -   

Over 3 years to 5 years  -    -    -    -   

Over 5 years  -    -    -    4,435,395,162 

Total  -    -    685,000,000  4,536,367,798 

 Note:    
 The above maturity pattern of assets and liabilities has been prepared by the Company after taking into consideration structural 

relied upon by the auditors.   
2.27 The Company is engaged in Investment activities and in Insurance business undertaken through the joint venture company 

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The Company operates only in one geographical segment i.e. India.

2.28

received from CCI, RBI & IRDA the transaction was consummated on December 17, 2013 for a total consideration of ` 340 crores.  

 The management views the investment in positive light as insurance industry plays a crucial role in the growth and development 

Insurance Industry has a long gestation period and the Company views this as a long term investment. Having regard to this and 

March 31, 2014 has substantially eroded, there is no diminution other than temporary in the value of investment of the Company 

2.29
disclosure.

 

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

  DR. B. SAMAL  BIPIN AGARWAL 
  Executive Chairman  Director 

 CUMI BANERJEE 
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014   CEO & Company Secretary 
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(as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding)  

Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank), Directions,2007

Particulars 31-03-2014 31-03-2013
 Liabilities Side: Amount 

outstanding
Amount 
overdue

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest 
accrued thereon but not paid: 

(a)  Debentures : Secured  -    -    -    -   
: Unsecured  -    -    -    -   

(other than falling within the meaning of  
public deposits)

(b)  Deferred Credits  -    -    -    -   
(c)  -    -    -    -   
(d)  Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  -    -    -    -   
(e)  Commercial Paper  -    -    -    -   
(f)  Public Deposits  -    -    -    -   
(g)  -    -    -    -   

(2)
interest accrued  thereon but not paid): 

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures  -    -    -    -   
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures  

where there is a shortfall in the value of security
 -    -    -    -   

(c) Other Public deposits  -    -    -    -   
Particulars 31-03-2014 31-03-2013

 Assets side : Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

(3)
than those included  in (4) below] :(net of provisions for doubtful loans) 

(a) Secured  -    -   
(b) Unsecured  685,058,915  528,157,233 

Total  685,058,915  528,157,233 
(4)

counting towards  AFC activities 
(i)

(a)  -    -   
(b) Operating lease  -    -   

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire  -    -   
(b) Repossessed Assets  -    -   

(iii) Other loans counting towards

(a)  -    -   
(b)  -    -   
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(5)
Current Investments :
1.  Quoted : 

(i)  Shares : (a)  Equity -  374,760    
(b)  Preference  -    -   

(ii)  Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)  Units of Mutual funds - 273,091,757  
(iv)  Government Securities  -    -   
(v)  Others (please specify)  -    -   

2. Unquoted :
(i)  Shares : (a)  Equity  -    -   

(b)  Preference  -    -   
(ii) Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)  Units of Mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)  Government Securities  -    -   
(v)  Others (please specify)  -    -   

1. Quoted :
(i)  Shares : (a)  Equity   237,095,709   243,969,786

(b)  Preference  -    -   
(ii)  Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)  Units of Mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)  Government Securities  -    -   
(v)  Others (please specify)  -    -   

2. Unquoted :
(i)  Shares : (a)  Equity 3,699,091,250  299,091,250 

(b)  Preference  600,000,000  600,000,000 
(ii)  Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)  Units of Mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)  Government Securities  -    -   
(v)  Others - Immovable property   180,839   190,356
(vi)  Others-Share Application Money  -    -   

  4,536,367,798   1,416,717,909 

(6)

Category
31-03-2014 31-03-2013

Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1.  Related Parties 
(a)  Subsidiaries  -    100,058,915  100,058,915  -    100,657,233  100,657,233 
(b)  Companies in the same group  -    585,000,000  585,000,000  -    427,500,000  427,500,000 
(c)  Other related parties  -    -    -    -    -    -   

2.  Other than related parties  -    30,306,137  30,306,137  -    2,632,193,322  2,632,193,322 
Total  -    715,365,052  715,365,052  -    3,160,350,555  3,160,350,555 
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(7)

 Category 

31-03-2014 31-03-2013

value or NAV

 
(Net of  

Provisions) value or NAV
(Net of  

Provisions)
1.  Related Parties 

(a)  Subsidiaries  532,040,696  630,033,073  575,362,894  630,033,073 
(b)  Companies in the same group  3,805,181,250  3,805,181,250  405,181,250  405,181,250 
(c)  Other related parties  -    -    -    -   

2.  Other than related parties  57,409,791  101,153,475  51,001,376  108,037,069 
Total  4,394,631,737  4,536,367,798  1,031,545,520  1,143,251,392 

(8) Other information

Particulars 31-03-2014
Amount

31-03-2013
Amount

(i)  Gross Non-performing Assets 
(a)  Related parties  -    -   
(b)  Other than related parties  4,500,000  4,500,000 

(ii)  Net Non-performing Assets 
(a)  Related parties  -    -   
(b)  Other than related parties  -    -   

(iii)  Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  -    -   

 DR. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
 Chairman Director   

 CUMI A. BANERJEE 
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014 CEO & Company Secretary  
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INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED
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Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED (the 
“Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (the 
Company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities constitutes 
“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as 

and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended 

explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation 

fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we 
comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers the internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation 

give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of the reports 

jointly controlled entities and associate referred in paragraph 1 

statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2014;

(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the 

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2.35 of the consolidated financial 
statements. As stated in the Note the net worth of Future Generali 

entity of the Group, as at 31st March 2014 has substantially eroded. 
However, the Management of the Company is of the view, for the 
reasons stated in the Note, that there is no impairment as at 31st 
March, 2014 in the value of Goodwill on consolidation arising on 
such acquisition.

Other Matters

` 886,516,900 as at 31st March, 
2014, total revenues of ` 
amounting to ` 32,227,157 for the year ended on that date, 

share of net loss of ` 7,939,412 for the year ended 31st March, 

audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the Management and our opinion, in so far as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate, is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

valuation of liabilities of life policies is the responsibility of the 

actuarial valuation of these liabilities as at 31st March, 2014 

for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and 
norms, issued by the IRDA and the Actuarial Society of India in 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 117365W)

Uday Neogi 
Partner  

MUMBAI: 20th May, 2014  (Membership No. 30235)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT  
31ST MARCH, 2014
Particulars Note 

No.
As at 

31st March, 
2014

`

As at
31st March, 

2013
`

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
 Share capital 2.1  225,475,500  225,475,500 
 Reserves and surplus 2.2  5,011,844,794  5,042,195,513 

 5,237,320,294  5,267,671,013 

Minority Interest  26,741,057  27,336,752 

Non-current liabilities
2.3  64,167,000 

 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 2.4  1,324,850 
 2.5  1,190,355,980  1,321,975,696 

 4,918,844,735 
 2.6  10,643,064  3,715,854 

 6,184,010,779  1,327,016,400 
Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 2.7 147,677,500 127,062,500 
Trade payables 2.8 419,772,644  290,006,643 
Other current liabilities

 126,610,641 
 2.9  1,462,057,457  1,231,633,839 
 2.10  104,246,066  62,545,491 

 2,260,364,308  1,711,248,473 

TOTAL  13,708,436,437  8,333,272,638 

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Fixed assets 2.11
(i) Tangible assets  109,957,031  14,533,455 
(ii) Intangible assets  7,699,094  2,011,084 

 202,497 
Goodwill on consolidation  
(See Note 2.35)  2,849,438,501  88,816,011 

2.12  3,951,933,688  574,687,305 
2.13  150,709,105  2,566,060,289 

Deferred tax assets (net) 2.4 6,570,963  1,604,920 
2.14  1,674,145  12,176,475 

TOTAL  7,078,185,024  3,259,889,539 
Current assets

Current investments 2.15  2,093,186,864  398,159,520 
Inventories 2.16  2,782,766,987  2,694,190,073 
Trade receivables 2.17  381,597,163  297,879,789 
Cash and bank balances 2.18  518,902,242  1,170,782,094 

2.19  519,101,598  447,262,512 
Other current assets 2.20  334,696,559  65,109,111 

 6,630,251,413  5,073,383,099 

TOTAL  13,708,436,437  8,333,272,638 

In terms of our report attached. 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants  

UDAY NEOGI
Partner

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Chairman Director   

CUMI BANERJEE  
CEO & Company Secretary
 
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND 
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
Particulars Note 

No.
For the

Year ended
31st March,

2014
`

For the
Year ended
31st March,

2013
`

Revenue from operations 2.21  1,387,891,360  1,210,344,137 
Premium from Insurance Business  548,129,899 
Other Operating income from Insurance Business  78,628,997 
Other Income from Insurance Business  105,942,465 
Other income 2.22  38,887,526  24,369,766 
Total Revenue  2,159,480,247  1,234,713,903 
Cost of sales 2.23  1,079,033,121  814,850,085 

2.24  61,996,326  76,562,250 
Finance costs 2.25  6,108,335  223,462 

 205,668,608 
Commission and Operating expenses 
pertaining to Insurance Business 

 511,389,702 

Other expenses pertaining to Insurance Business  90,248,716 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 9,517  10,019 
2.11  8,891,483  4,480,208 

 Other expenses 2.26  105,888,824  121,968,141 
Provision for diminution in value of investments  7,200,000  8,600,000 
Contingent provisions against standard assets  120,000  951,000 

Investment  149,378 

 1,307,910 
Net loss on sale of current investments  211,864 
Total expenses  2,076,766,496  1,029,102,453 

 82,713,751  205,611,450 
Exceptional items

 82,713,751  205,611,450 
Tax expense:

 82,301,300  80,950,056 
(18,200,000)  (19,920,091)

(6,290,891)  (534,876)
 883,985 

 58,694,394  60,495,089 

of minority interest  24,019,357  145,116,361 

(595,695)  25,617,318 

interest  24,615,052  119,499,043 

(7,939,412)  (13,531,014)
 16,675,640  105,968,029 

Earnings per equity share: 2.30
Basic  0.71  5.88 
Diluted  0.71  5.57 
Nominal Value per equity share  10.00  10.00 

In terms of our report attached. 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants  

UDAY NEOGI
Partner

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Chairman Director   

CUMI BANERJEE  
CEO & Company Secretary
 
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014
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Particulars For the
Year ended
31st March,

2014
`

For the
Year ended
31st March,

2013
`

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  82,713,751  205,611,450 
 Adjustments for:

 9,992,575  4,480,208 
Depreciation on investment on immovable property  9,517  10,019 

 (133,593,617)  (101,121,191)
Provision for bad debts  6,540,307 

 704,202  435,441 
Interest on income tax  5,244,223  1,927 

 4,499,958 
 (6,193,242)  (3,879,072)

 (774,993)
Provision for diminution in value of investments   7,200,000  8,600,000 
Contingent provision against standard assets  120,000  951,000 

 48,840 
 211,864  (4,987,569)

 (1,340,413)
 108,761,800 

Inventories (See Note 3 below) (38,732,781)  (224,510,639)
Trade receivables (83,909,993)  (16,048,332)

(43,504,112)  (46,948,844)
3,751,644  5,335,615 

Other current assets (71,432,312)  (11,567,338)
 10,144,882  (11,559,388)

liabilities:
Trade payables  75,800,943  73,403,542 
Other current liabilities 214,171,605  289,789,806 

 597,097  (936,380)
(131,619,716)  (109,451,438)
 363,572,961 

 6,927,211  2,668,897 

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents 
(6,936,008,642)  (13,415,712,459)
 7,507,822,321  12,763,866,163 

 (250,000,000)
 (12,128,800)

 2,858,378 
 Purchase of current investments (35,000,000)  (580,629,885)
 Sale of current investments  307,296,763  309,453,710 
 Amount paid for acquiring equity shares [See Note 
2.13a] 

(900,000,000)  (2,500,000,000)

 (35,000,000)
 (190,000,000)  (126,000,000)

 (100,000,000)
 Repayment of loans 

 121,937,500 
 100,000,000 

 Interest received  
 33,761,983  15,581,281 
 70,861,288  57,908,859 

 328,162,027 
 Net income tax paid  (66,953,407)  (32,729,790)

 261,208,620 

pertaining to Insurance Business.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

Particulars For the
Year ended
31st March,

2014
`

For the
Year ended
31st March,

2013
`

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 Bank balances not considered as cash and cash 

equivalents 
 (3,705,870)  (63,029,431)

 Purchase of non current investments  (297,655,366)  (32,500,000)

Purchase of current investments  (398,293,079)  (725,782,683)

Proceeds from Sale of current investments  382,327,944  638,421,355 

Interest received (See Note 3 below)  9,010,024  18,001,482 

Dividend income  5,202,667  3,879,072 

 (104,882,482)  (3,719,367)

 90,991  727,495 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Issue of equity share (including GDS)  3,354,044,940 

Proceeds from Issue of Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares (CCPS) 

 957,918,029 

Borrowings availed  212,643,285  88,825,000 

Repayment of borrowings  (127,861,285)  (170,437,500)

Finance cost (See Note 3 below)  (60,534,957)  (33,857,828)

Dividend paid  (30,927,037)  (15,000,000)

Tax on dividend paid  (6,083,438)  (2,433,000)

 4,179,059,641 

 206,462,322 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  329,767,431  123,305,109 

Cash and cash equivalents acquired on acquisition of  34,085,440 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  
(See Note 2.18) 

 204,392,888  329,767,431 

Notes:       

activities.

2  Direct tax paid is treated arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing 

3  Changes in inventories is after adjusting borrowing costs capitalised. Interest received is inclusive 

inventories.

4  The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the 

In terms of our report attached. 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants  

UDAY NEOGI
Partner

Mumbai: 20th May, 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. B. SAMAL BIPIN AGARWAL 
Chairman Director   

CUMI BANERJEE  
CEO & Company Secretary
 
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014
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1.1 Basis of consolidation :

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standard 21 (AS 21) “Consolidated Financial Statements”, Accounting 
Standard 23 (AS 23) “Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated 
Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard 27 (AS 27) “Financial Reporting 

Companies Act, 1956.
1.2

as per Accounting standard 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” as 

Name of Subsidiary For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2013
Extent of Extent of 

99 99
(ii)  IIT Insurance Broking and Risk 100 100

71.74 71.74
100 100

  All the Subsidiaries mentioned above are incorporated in India.

consolidated as per Accounting standard 27 on “Financial Reporting of Interest in 

Name of Jointly Controlled Entity For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2013
Extent of Extent of 

50 50
45 45

47.50 47.50
 47.50  47.50 
22.50  

(w.e.f. 17th 
December, 

2013)

 Nil

  All the jointly controlled entities mentioned above are incorporated in India.
 (iii) The following associate, investment in which is accounted using equity method 

as per Accounting standard 23 on “ Accounting for Investments in Associates in 

Standards) Rules, 2006:

Name of Associate Company For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended  
31st March,  

2013
Extent of Extent of 

25 25  
(w.e.f. 28th 

August, 2012)
1.3 Principles of consolidation:
 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:
 (i) The Financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been 

consolidated on a line by line basis by adding together the  book values of like 

Rules, 2006.
 (ii) The financial statements of the jointly controlled entities have been 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

consolidated on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of 

2006 using the “proportionate consolidation” method.

in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the 
Company, i.e. 31st March, 2014.

 (iv) The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in the subsidiaries 
and jointly controlled entities over the Company’s portion of equity, at the 

Statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiaries & 

of cost of the investment of the company, it is recognised as Capital Reseve 
& shown under the head Reserves & Surplus in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

 (v) Minority interest in the net assets of the subsidiaries consists of the amount 
of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which 
investments in the subsidiary companies were made and further movement 
in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments.

under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the 

have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards 

(which continue to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies 

September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs).The Company follows 

Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.

convention on accrual basis in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles in India and in compliance with the Accounting 
Standards as prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006, the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory 
and Development Act, 1999, the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority (IRDA) (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of 
Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (The Accounting Regulations) and 

Authority issued thereafter and as per the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent 
applicable. 

requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) 
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management 

prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these estimates and 
the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised 

  Other than Insurance Business :

(b) Rental income is accrued on the basis of the agreement.
(c) Dividend is accounted when the right to receive payment is established.

the basis of weighted average carrying amount of investments and is 
recognised on the basis of contract notes.

(e) Fees from real estate consultancy are accounted as per the terms of 
contract with the customers.
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(f) Revenue from real estate projects is recognised on the Percentage of 
Completion Method. Revenue is recognised in relation to the areas sold, 
on the basis of percentage of actual costs incurred as against the total 
estimated cost of the project under execution, subject to such actual costs 

included for the purpose of computing the percentage of completion.                                                              

for Real Estates transactions (revised 2012) issued by ICAI. It is based 
on Percentage of completion method.

  The estimates of saleable area and costs are revised periodically by the 
Management. The effect of such changes in estimates is recognised in 
the period such changes are determined.

(g) Commission and brokerage from insurance broking business is credited 
to income on the date of issue of the prime documents by the Insurance 
Company, except where there are material installments, in which case 
the brokerage is booked on the due date of the installment. Adjustments 
to brokerage arising from premium additions, reductions and renewal 
directly deposited by the client are taken into account as and when they 
are known.

(h) Brokerage income from stock broking activities is recognised on the basis 
of Contract Notes issued.

proportionate completion method based on management estimates of 
the stages of completion of the contracts.

(j) Net income from trading of securities is accounted for on the basis of 
Stock Brokers Contract Notes.

the basis of weighted average carrying amount of investments and is 
recognised on the basis of contract notes.

(l) Brokerage income from primary market has been recognised on the basis 
of advice from the Registrar regarding allotment.

  In accordance with Guidance Note on “Accounting for Equity Index and 
Equity Stock Futures and Options” issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.    

Equity Stock Futures Account”, represents the net amount paid or 
received on the basis of movement in the prices of Stock Futures 
till the Balance Sheet date.    

any, in Equity Stock Futures are accounted for as follows:

more than one contract in respect of the relevant series of Equity 

outstanding at the time of the squaring up of the contract, the contract 
price of the contract so squared up is determined using First In First 

margin and “Margin Deposits” representing additional margin paid 
over and above the initial margin, for entering into contracts for Equity 

  Insurance Business
  Life Insurance Premium :    

 (a) Premium (net of service tax) is recognised as income when due from 
policyholders. Premium on lapsed policies is recognised as income on 
receipt basis on reinstatement or revival of these policies. In respect of 
linked business, premium income is recognised when the associated 
units are allotted.    

 (b) Top up premiums are considered as single premium.
 Others :     
 (c) Interest on investments and loans are recognised on accrual basis. 

securities is affected over the remaining term of such instruments on 

 (d) In case of unit linked business, fund management charges, administration 
charges and mortality charges are recognised in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the policy.

as difference between net sales proceeds or redemption proceeds and 
amortised cost. Cost in respect of these securities is computed using 

loss on Debt securities are calculated as the difference between the net 
sales proceeds and their weighted average cost.

and amortised cost.
  Reinsurance premium :     

 (f) Premium ceded on reinsurance is accounted in accordance with the 
terms of the treaty.     

 (a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Construction material cost is determined on a First in First Out basis.  
Construction work in progress comprises premium for development rights 
and expenditure relating to construction after ascertaining the cost of 
sales which is determined based on the total area sold as at the Balance 
Sheet date.    

 (b) Stock of shares held as inventory has been valued at Cost or Market 
price whichever is lower. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

  Tangible Asstes :     
  Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 

amortisation. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any other attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 

  Intangible Asstes :     

cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Expenditure on an intangible 
item is expensed when incurred unless it forms part of the cost of intangible 
asset that meets the recognition criteria. Intangible assets are stated at cost 

impairment loss, if any.

basis at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to Companies Act, 1956, 

line method, at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies 

on written down value method, at rates and in the manner as provided 
under section 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. These rates are higher 
than the rate prescribed under schedule XIV of companies Act, 1956 in 

The rate of depreciation is the higher of the management estimate based 
on the useful lives and the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956.
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 (b) Depreciation
irrespective of the date of addition and no depreciation is provided on 

 (c) Computer software is amortised over the period of its estimated useful 
life ranging from 2 to 5 years.

  Other Than Insurance Business :

unless there is a diminution in value, other than temporary for which provision 
is made. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Cost of 
Investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 
Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Investment 
properties are carried individually at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Investment properties are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with 
the policy stated for Fixed Assets.

  Insurance Business :
  Investments are made in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938, the 

Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Investment) Regulations, 

to time. Investments are recorded on the trade date at cost, which includes 
brokerage, statutory levies, if any and excludes interest paid, if any, on 
Purchase.

  Investments intended to be held for a period of less than twelve months or those 

investments:     
  Debt securities including government securities are considered as “held to 

maturity” and are stated at amortised cost. The premium or discount, which is 

is amortised over the life of the instrument on Constant Yield basis. Fixed 
deposits are valued at cost till the date of maturity. Investments in mutual 
funds are stated at the Net Asset Value (NAV) as at the Balance Sheet date. 

For the purpose of calculating NAV, listed equity shares are valued at last 
quoted closing price on the NSE and in case the equity shares are not listed 
or traded on NSE then they are valued on the last quoted closing price on the 
BSE. Unlisted equity securities are measured at historic cost. In respect of 

investment gain or losses are reported in the Balance Sheet under “Fair Value 
Change Account”. In case of diminution, other than temporary, in the market 
value of investments as on the Balance Sheet date, the amount of diminution 

case may be. 

  Government Securities and other Debt Securities with remaining maturity 
more than 182 days are valued based on market value obtained from Fixed 

remaining maturity of up to 182 days are valued at amortised cost spread 

are measured at fair value on the Balance Sheet date. For the purpose of 
determining fair value, the last quoted closing price at the National Stock 

cost till the date of maturity. Mutual fund units are valued at previous day’s 
Net Asset Value. 

  Transfer of Investments :    
  Transfer of debt securities from shareholders’ to policyholders’ is done at 

the lower of net amortised cost and market value on the date of transfer. In 
the case of equity securities, such transfers are affected at lower of cost and 
market value on the date of transfer. In case of unit linked fund, such transfers 
are effected at market value on date of transfer.

  “Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured 
at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which 

tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is 
recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable 

 
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between 
the taxable income and the accounting income that originate in one period 
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax 
is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences 
of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only 

income will be available against which these can be realised. However, if 
there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred 
tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be 

assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied 
by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable 
right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date for their realisability.

  A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result 

to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance 

liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are not recognised in 

date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of  impairment exists, the 
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, 
if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in 

present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication 
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods 
no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss 

assets.

the related service is rendered.      

  The eligible employees of the Group are entitled to receive post 

in which both employees and the Group makes monthly contributions 

12% of employees’ eligible salary). The contributions are made to 
Employees Provident Fund Organisation. Provident Fund and Family 

Group has no further obligation beyond making the contribution. 

1. Gratuity     
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method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 
balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 

occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent 

cost,  as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset 
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus 
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future 
contributions to the schemes.

2. Compensated absences
 The Group provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay 

subject to certain rules. The Employees are entitled to accumulate 

The Group makes provision for compensated absences based on 
an actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year except for 

for compensated absences, which is not material, is based on 
management valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction 
of qualifying assets are capitalised for the period until the asset is ready 
for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Other Borrowing 
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement 

on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in Statement of 

  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to reporting currency based 
on the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences 

  Cash and bank balances, receivables and liabilities (monetary items) in foreign 

  Share issue expenses are adjusted against Securities Premium Account in 
terms of Section 78 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956.

tax attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend 
and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing  

any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income 
(net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by 
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which 
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to 

operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as 
at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable 
had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value 
of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. The number of  equity shares and 

splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

  Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the 
underlying service received is accounted and when there is no reasonable 

  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash 

or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily 

risk of changes in value.

before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of 

of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

  Claims by death are accounted when intimated. Claims by maturity are 

Claims recovered or recoverable from reinsurer are accounted in the 
same period as that of the related claims. Withdrawals under unit linked 
policies are accounted in respective schemes when the associated units 
are cancelled.

  The balance in this account represents the amounts estimated by the 

required to be set aside in the Balance Sheet and are not available for 
distribution to shareholders until the expiry of the revival period.

repayments) plus capitalised interest (accrued and due) and are subject 
to impairment, if any. 

generally accepted actuarial practice in accordance with the Standards 
and Guidance Notes established by the Institute of Actuaries of India, 
the requirement of the Insurance Act, 1938 and the regulations issued 

calculated by Gross Premium Reserve Method. In respect of riders 
and group term insurance, Unearned Premium Method is used. The 
liabilities are calculated in a manner that together with estimated future 

estimated future claims (including bonus entitlements to the policyholders) 

etc. This is based on an actuarial valuation carried out by the Appointed 
Actuary. The actuarial assumptions are given below.

  Actuarial Method and Assumptions for Insurance Company :
 The actuarial method and the assumptions used in the valuation as at 

March 31, 2014 are stated below:

Insurers) Regulations, 2000 and using generally accepted actuarial 
principles and in accordance with the Guidance Notes issued by 
the Institute of Actuaries of India with the concurrence of Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA);

used to calculate the liabilities with respect to expenses, mortality 
and other claims; negative reserves have been eliminated at policy 
level;

reserve as per IRDA guidelines;
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(d) For
using the bonus rate on Policy Holder’s Pension Fund Account.  
Policyholder pension fund account is calculated using the premiums 
accumulated with past bonuses declared.

(e) In respect of Riders, unearned premium method has been used;

(f) In respect of Group Term insurance Gross Premium valuation 
method has been used. Explicit allowance is made for incurred but 
not reported claims as at March 31, 2014.

(g) For Group Credit Suraksha, Gross Premium Reserve method has 
been used; and

accumulated using the crediting rate which is calculated as yield 
less expenses.

  Valuation assumptions are based on pricing assumptions which are derived 
from industry experience or based on own projection and assessment duly 
adjusted for Margin for Adverse Deviation as per relevant Guidance Notes 
issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India.

inked business.      

  Interest rate: 6.00% per annum for participating business and 5% for non 
participating business. For unit linked products, non unit reserves are 
calculated based on 5% discount rate.

  Morbidity: For critical illness it is based on CIBT (93) table with adjustment to 

of age.     

  Commission: As per the provision under the relevant plan approved by IRDA.

  Expenses: Appropriate assumptions are made based on the long term 
expenses projected in the business plan with allowance for adverse deviation.

  Future Bonus rates: For participating business, future bonus rate assumptions 
are not changed and bonus rates assumed are consistent with the valuation 
rate of interest used. 

2.1  Share Capital

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013

 `  ` 

Authorised

30,000,000 (previous year 30,000,000) Equity 
shares of ` 10 each

 300,000,000  300,000,000 

5,000,000 (previous year 5,000,000) 
Preference shares of ` 10 each

 50,000,000  50,000,000 

 350,000,000  350,000,000 

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

21,827,550 (previous year 20,777,550) 
Equity shares of ` 10 each with voting rights 
[Included above are 9,777,550 (Previous year: 
9,777,550) equity shares] represented by 
4,888,755 (Previous year: 4,888,755) Global 

 218,275,500  207,775,500 

720,000 (previous year 1,770,000) 10% 
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
(CCPS) of `

 7,200,000  17,700,000 

Total  225,475,500  225,475,500 

the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Equity Shares As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013 

No. of shares ` No. of shares ` 
Opening Balance  20,777,550  207,775,500  10,000,000  100,000,000 

during the year
 9,777,550  97,775,500 

of CCPS to equity 
shares

 1,050,000  10,500,000  1,000,000  10,000,000 

Closing balance  21,827,550  218,275,500  20,777,550  207,775,500 
 During the previous year, the Company had issued 4,888,755  Global 

the Company of nominal value `10 each, aggregating to US $ 59.89 
millions equivalent to ` 3,377,606,725 (including share premium of  
`

10% Compulsory 
Convertible 
Preference Shares

 As at 31st March, 2014  As at 31st March, 2013 
No. of 
shares 

` No. of 
shares 

` 

Opening Balance  1,770,000  17,700,000 

the year
 2,770,000  27,700,000 

of CCPS to equity 
shares

 1,050,000  10,500,000  1,000,000  10,000,000 

Closing balance  720,000  7,200,000  1,770,000  17,700,000 
 During the previous year, the Company has allotted 2,770,000 10% 

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of ̀  10 each on a preferential 
basis to companies in the promoter group at a price of `
The closing balance of 720,000 CCPS shall be converted to equity 
shares on 3rd April, 2014.

 Equity shares of the company are issued at a par value of ` 10 per 
share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.  
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.  
The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares 
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after payment 

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders."

 Holders of the GDSs will have no voting rights with respect to the 
underlying equity shares. The Depositary will not exercise any voting 
rights with respect to the deposited shares. Other rights, preferences and 
restrictions are same as equity shares.

 The Preference Shares shall rank for capital and dividend (including all 
dividends undeclared upto the commencement of winding up) and for 
repayment of capital in a winding up pari pasu inter se and in priority 
to the Equity Shares of the Company, but shall not confer any further 

Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) are convertible into Equity 
Shares  of face value of ` 10 each, any time within 18 months from the 
date of allotment, in one or more tranches at a price of ` 350 including 
premium of ` 340 per share.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013
No. of 

Shares held
% of 

Holding 
No. of 

Shares held
% of 

Holding 
N. N. Financial 
Services Private 

 6,637,960  30.42  5,787,960  27.86 

 1,913,427  8.77  1,713,427  8.25 

Corporation of India
 1,225,017  5.61  1,225,017  5.90 

The Bank of New 
York Mellon (for 
GDS holders)

 9,777,550  44.79  9,777,550  47.06 
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2013
No. of 

Shares held
% of 

Holding 
No. of 

Shares held
% of 

Holding 
N. N. Financial 
Services Private 

 450,000  62.50  1,300,000  73.45 

 270,000  37.50  470,000  26.55 

Guidelines for preferential issues, SEBI (Disclosure and Investor 

(i) Regarding issue of preference shares: 
Particulars During the year ended

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013
` `

Total amount received from issue 
of CCPS, issued at the price of  
` 350 including share premium of 
` 340 each

 969,500,000 

Unutilised monies as on 1st April, 
2013

 277,918,029 

Purpose for which the money 

 250,000,000  340,000,000 

b. Investment in Preferernce  350,000,000 

 20,000,000 

d. Direct Expenses incurred 
towards the CCPS Issue

 1,581,971 

 270,000,000  691,581,971 
Unutilised monies  7,918,029  277,918,029 

 Balance amount of ` 277,918,029 was invested in Short Term Mutual 
Funds and Fixed Deposits with Banks in the previous year. Unutilised 
money as on 31st March, 2014 is invested in Fixed Deposit.

(ii) Regarding issue of Global Depository Shares:
Particulars During the year ended

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013
` `

Total amount received from issue 
of GDS  

 3,377,606,725 

Unutilised monies as on 1st April, 
2013

 594,044,940 

Purpose for which the 
money received has been 

a.  Amount paid to Pantaloon 

acquiring their equity stake of 
22.5% in Future Generali India 

(See note no. 2.13(a))

 594,044,940  2,500,000,000 

b. Investments in preference 
shares of an associate, World 

 250,000,000 

c. Direct Expenses incurred 
towards the GDS Issue

 33,561,785 

 594,044,940  2,783,561,785 
Unutilised monies  594,044,940 

 Balance amount of ` 594,044,940 was invested in Fixed Deposits with 
Banks in the previous year.

2.2  RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

 `  ` 
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last Consolidated  
Balance Sheet

 750  750 

Capital reserve on consolidation
Balance as per last Consolidated  
Balance Sheet

 702,000  702,000 

Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transfer from Surplus in the   15,000,000 

Closing balance  15,000,000  -   
Fair Value Change  656  -   
General Reserve
Opening balance  177,278,048  170,746,058 

Add: Transfer from Surplus in the  18,319,458  6,531,990 

Closing balance  195,597,506  177,278,048 
Special Reserve (as per the RBI 

Opening balance  275,086,961  257,959,000 

Add: Transfer from Surplus in the  28,038,770  17,127,961 

Closing balance  303,125,731  275,086,961 
Securities Premium Account
Opening balance  4,186,487,469 

Add : Premium on issue of GDS  3,279,831,225 
Add : Premium on issue of CCPS  941,800,000 

Utilised for :
Writing off GDS issue expenses  33,561,785 #  
Writing off CCPS issue expenses  1,581,971 

 4,186,487,469  4,186,487,469 
Surplus in Consolidated Statement of 

Opening balance  402,640,285  356,515,294 

Add:  16,675,640 105,968,029 

Add: Reversal of excess tax on 
dividend of previous year
Dividend proposed to be 
distributed to equity shareholders 
(` 1.75 per share, previous year 
` 1.50 per share)

 37,135,986  29,703,311 

Dividend proposed to be 
distributed to CCPS shareholders 
(` 1.00 per share, previous year  
` 1.00 per share)

 1,326,986  1,223,726 

Tax on dividend  13,820,093  5,256,050 

Transferred to:
 18,319,458  6,531,990 

 28,038,770  17,127,961 

 15,000,000 

Closing balance  310,930,682  402,640,285 
Total  5,011,844,794  5,042,195,513 

# Includes ` 1,668,920 paid to the Statutory Auditor towards professional 
services provided by them in connection with the issue of GDS
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Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
 `  ` 

 49,167,000 

 15,000,000 

Total  64,167,000  - 

2.4 Deferred taxes

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation  16,139 306,130 (1,756,614)
Deferred tax assets:
Items covered under section 
43B of the Income tax Act, 1961

 2,047,928  1,298,790  431,764 

Provision for doubtful loans  1,529,550 
Contingent Provision against 
Standard Assets

 582,929 

 272,414 
Provisions for Bad and doubt
ful debts 

 2,122,003 

Total  6,570,963 -  1,604,920 

2.5 Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
 `  ` 

Trade payables
 1,150,599,148  1,293,328,610 

 21,982,993  25,583,283 

 17,773,839  3,063,803 

Total  1,190,355,980  1,321,975,696 

2.6 Long-term provisions

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
 `  ` 

Compensated absences
 8,847,562  3,030,868 

(See Note 2.32)
 1,795,502  684,986 

Total  10,643,064  3,715,854 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
 `  ` 

(See Note 2.31)
 127,062,500 

Others  147,677,500 

Total  147,677,500  127,062,500 

2.8 Trade payables

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2014

As at  
31st March, 

2013
 `  ` 

Trade Payables  188,948,672  98,140,491 

Premium for development rights  224,813,994  187,399,187 

Retention money  5,489,558  3,612,318 

Others  520,420  854,647 

Total  419,772,644  290,006,643 

2.9 Other current liabilities    

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2014

As at  
31st March, 

2013
 `  ` 

 4,129,452  3,984,182 

Interest accured on borrowings  465,179  5,125,861 

Advances received from customers (includ
ing the progress billings for which amounts 
are not received)

 1,336,138,649  1,177,025,418 

Security deposits  54,788  13,777,073 

Rent received in advance  1,309,568 

Statutory remittances  31,820,225  23,495,967 

Interest Free Maintenance Security received 
from customers

 548,030 

 60,509,538 

Other liabilities  28,391,596  6,915,770 

Total  1,462,057,457  1,231,633,839 

due.

2.10 Short term provisions

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2014

As at  
31st March, 

2013
 `  ` 

Compensated absences  2,704,463  1,941,854 

Gratuity (See Note 2.32)  521,502  466,658 

 3,225,965  2,408,512 

Others:
Income Tax (net of advance tax)  53,105,474  22,138,535 

Contingent Provision against Standard 
Assets

 1,715,000  1,595,000 

Dealer brokerage commission  220,357 

Proposed dividend  38,462,972  30,927,037 

Tax on proposed dividend  7,736,655  5,256,050 

Total  104,246,066  62,545,491 
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2.12 Non-current investments 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

 `  ` 

 133,710,824  141,650,236 

 133,710,824  141,650,236 

10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares  250,000,000  250,000,000 

14% Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares  250,000,000 

10% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares  75,000,000  75,000,000 

 575,000,000  325,000,000 

 708,710,824  466,650,236 

Other investments

 186,536,162  186,210,239 

 (85,563,526)  (78,363,526)

 100,972,636  107,846,713 

Immovable property (cost)  48,724,436  1,069,071 

 (888,232)  (878,715)

 47,836,204  190,356 

Of Insurance Company 

Government Securities  1,634,045,769 

Equity Shares  4,851,930 

 84,119,819 

 150,423 

Debentures  1,355,188,213 

 16,057,870 

 3,094,414,024  - 

Particulars                              As at  
March 31, 2014

As at  
March 31, 2013

Investment related to Policy Holders                1,572,457,354

Investment to cover linked liabilities                   1,177,966,240

Investment related to Shareholder                       343,990,430

Total                                                                  3,094,414,024

Total Other Investments  3,243,222,864  108,037,069 

Total  3,951,933,688  574,687,305 
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2.13 Long-term loans and advances 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

Amount paid for acquiring equity shares (See 
Note (a) below)

 2,500,000,000 

Security deposits:
 515,500  468,000 

 75,275,504  31,327,322 
Debit balance in gratuity fund (See Note 2.32)  477,220  612,946 
Advance payment of income tax (net of provi
sions)

 63,730,994  25,331,985 

Advances for supply of goods and services  1,182,476  717,211 
Balances with government authorities  5,182,538  5,182,538 

 1,924,586 
Fixed deposit with IRDA  2,420,287  2,420,287 

 4,500,000  4,500,000 
(4,500,000) (4,500,000)

 -    -   
Total  150,709,105  2,566,060,289 

 The Company had entered into Share Purchase Agreement with 

` 250 crores.  
Pursuant to the approval received from Competition Commission of 
India (CCI), Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority (IRDA) , transaction has been consummated on 
December 17, 2013 for a total consideration of ̀

2.14 Other Non-current assets   

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

1,537,006 11,681,888
137,139 494,587

Total  1,674,145  12,176,475 
 1,576,329  11,649,295 

2.15 Current investments 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

` `
Investment in Mutual Funds
Units of Mutual Funds (unquoted)  397,784,760 

 524,138 
(149,378)

374,760 
Of Insurance company 

 13 
Government Securities  377,524,882 
Treasury Bills  22,489,140 
Debentures  624,701,343 
Equity Shares  1,068,239,518 

 231,968 
 2,093,186,864  -   

Particulars                                              As at  
31st March, 2014

As at  
31st March, 2013

Investment related to Policy Holders                  874,471,636
Investment to cover linked liabilities              910,898,541
Investment related to Shareholder             307,816,687
Total                                                               2,093,186,864

Total  2,093,186,864  398,159,520 

2.16 Inventories

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

Construction materials  28,748  653,503 

  2,782,738,239  2,693,536,570 

Total  2,782,766,987  2,694,190,073 

2.17  Trade receivables 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
from the date they were due for payment

 82,634,748  58,372,728 
Doubtful  6,540,307 

 89,175,055  58,372,728 
 6,540,307 

 82,634,748  58,372,728 
Other Trade receivables

 298,962,415  239,507,061 
Total  381,597,163  297,879,789 
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2.20 Other current assets 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

Unbilled revenue  65,658,498  50,547,115 
Premium receivable  113,677,813 
Interest accrued on:

 11,094,346  7,570,997 
 77,434 

 6,821,920 
 713,358  

Income from Other Securities  1,865,253 
Interest Accrued on Investments  139,982,314 
Other Receivable  1,627,543  169,079 

Total  334,696,559  65,109,111 
2.21 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013
` `

Interest [See Note 2.21 (a)]  99,272,533  83,924,354 

 5,964,618  20,715,232 

Sale of Services [See Note 2.21 (c)]  1,265,856,418  1,088,255,332 

Other operating income [See Note 2.21 (d)]  16,797,791  17,449,219 

Total  1,387,891,360  1,210,344,137 

 56,669,381  58,484,210 

 42,603,152  25,440,144 

Total  99,272,533  83,924,354 

investments 
From other  365,976  13,515,564 

investments 
 5,598,642  389,248 

 1,340,413 
 2,439,721 

Income from stock market operations  3,030,286 
Total  5,964,618  20,715,232 

Income from:
 1,189,987,239  929,498,354 

 895,000 
Consultancy fees  5,000,000 
Brokerage:

 75,592,533  151,105,736 

 275,778  251,751 

 868  1,504,491 

Total  1,265,856,418  1,088,255,332 

 Rent on immovable property  15,588,085  15,714,816 
 Others  1,209,706  1,734,403 

Total  16,797,791  17,449,219 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

Cash on hand  12,728,553  415,209 

Cheques on hand  206,150  10,882,414 

Balances with banks
 102,642,971  60,960,529 

upto 3 months
 88,815,214  257,509,279 

 204,392,888  329,767,431 

of more than 3 months but upto 12 
 297,171,094  782,617,752 

of more than 12 months
 13,208,809  54,412,729 

accounts
 4,129,451  3,984,182 

 314,509,354  841,014,663 

Total  518,902,242  1,170,782,094 

Of the above, the balances that meet the 

per AS 3 Cash Flow Statements is 
 204,392,888  329,767,431 

by bank
 23,843,197 13,593,153

2.19  Short-term loans and advances 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
` `

(standard Assets)

(See Note 2.31)
 307,500,000  224,437,500 

 20,000,000 

 327,500,000  224,437,500 

Other loans and advances 
Security deposits  4,198,901  4,311,624 

Advances for supply of goods and services  91,824,818  79,939,356 

Advance towards annual lease rent  5,382,926  5,382,926 

Prepaid expenses  8,929,672  2,027,152 

Advance payment of income tax  (net of 
provisions)

 11,790,677  15,224,225 

MAT credit entitlement  4,613,474  8,935,640 

Balances with government authorities  4,131,000  2,317,340 

Advances to others  18,407,896  169,433 

 100,000,000 

Service tax receivable  42,322,234  4,517,316 

 191,601,598  222,825,012 
Total  519,101,598  447,262,512 
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2.22 Other income

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013
` `

 Interest: 
 27,068,594  13,983,564 
 2,952,457  564,160 

 3,643,231 
 3,270,559 

 Dividend income on current investments  2,811,003  3,879,072 
 2,547,848 

 774,993 
 Others  3,854,192  746,009 

40,731,798  25,363,884 
(1,844,272) (994,118)

Total 38,887,526  24,369,766 
2.23 Cost of sales

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013
` `

Opening balance of construction works in 
progress

 2,693,536,569  2,431,960,872 

Opening balance of materilas at site  653,503 
2,694,190,072 2,431,960,872 

Add: Expenses incurred during the year
land, development right and transferable 
development right

 129,599,122  101,335,504 

Material, structural, labour and contract cost  951,201,848  890,521,762 
other project cost  29,311,006  21,325,435 

 7,653,927  5,199,140 
Depreciation  314,087  212,010 

 51,374,318  59,479,554 
 1,169,454,308  1,078,073,404 

(1,844,272) (994,118)
 1,167,610,036  1,077,079,286 

Closing balance of construction works in 
progress

(2,782,738,239) (2,693,536,570)

Closing stock of Material at site (28,748) (653,503)

 1,079,033,121  814,850,085 

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013
` `

Salaries and bonus  63,164,139  74,678,259 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
(See Note 2.32)

 4,450,977  5,684,308 

Staff welfare expenses  2,035,137  1,398,823 
 69,650,253  81,761,390 
(7,653,927) (5,199,140)

Total  61,996,326  76,562,250 

2.25 Finance cost

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013

` `

Interest on loans  51,374,317  59,479,554 

income tax 
 5,244,223  1,927 

Others  864,113  221,535 

 57,482,653  59,703,016 

(51,374,318) (59,479,554)

Total  6,108,335  223,462 

 2.26  Other expenses

Particulars For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2014

For the  
year ended 
31st March,  

2013

` `

Power and fuel  2,216,168  2,369,532 

Rent including lease rentals (See Note 2.28)  8,936,120  10,216,254 

Insurance  901,637  1,955,925 

Repairs and maintenance:

 1,330,629  1,038,945 

 292,303 

 44,310 

 109,015 

 2,929,040  3,762,706 

 4,705,297  4,801,651 

Rates and taxes  1,545,083  910,523 

Travelling and conveyance  7,504,456  8,681,244 

Printing and stationery  844,438  1,173,430 

Communication expenses  3,345,939  4,392,633 

 4,368,396  5,057,236 

 2,949,898  3,679,833 

Membership fees  911,991  2,079,787 

Payments to auditors (See Note 2.29)  3,746,621  3,979,026 

Charity & donation  100,000  204,450 

Brokerage and commission  44,800,240  62,265,588 

Advertisement and marketing expenses  5,319,228  3,153,395 

Training expenses  178,528  65,000 

 281,823  278,509 

Service tax paid  1,111,934 

Business promotion  908,392  1,362,856 

 704,202  435,441 

Provision for bad debts  6,540,307 

 48,840 

Miscellaneous expenditure  5,031,220  3,793,894 

Total  105,888,824  121,968,141 
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2.27 Contingent liabilities and commitments not provided for 

Particulars As at  
31st March,  

2014

As at  
31st March,  

2013
 `  ` 

 13,268,716  12,030,592 
 3,250,246 3,250,246
 1,757,699 

 253,400,000  253,400,000 

` 190,050,000 (previous year ` 190,050,000 against the aforesaid guarantees 
given by the Company to the banks.

outcome of the appeal.
     

 Capital Commitments :
 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account, to the extent not provided for (net of advances): ` 75,719 
(Previous Year ` Nil ).     

 Other Commitments :
 

2.28
lease. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements. There are 

`  ` 10,216,254).

for each of the following periods:

Particulars  Year ended  
31st March,  

2014 

 Year ended  
31st March,  

2013 
 `  ` 

Not later than one year  77,952,300  2,672,944 

 135,020,975  3,043,600 

 41,725,350 

Total  254,698,625  5,716,544 

` 
included in Other expense pertaining to Insurance Business in the Statement 

2.29 Payments to auditors

Particulars  Year ended  
31st March,  

2014 

 Year ended  
31st March,  

2013 
 `  ` 

For statutory audit  1,504,783  1,346,693 
For other services  2,026,333  2,234,626 
Reimbursement of expenses  20,012  55,585 
Service tax  432,504  433,759 

Sub-total  3,983,632  4,070,663 
 85,062  91,636 

Total  3,898,570  3,979,027
 # This amount includes payment to auditors of `

which is included in Other expense pertaining to Insurance Business in the 

2.30
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. The Company has not issued any potential 
equity shares and accordingly, the basic earnings per share and diluted 
earnings per share are the same. Values used in calculating earnings per share 
are as under: 

Particulars  Year ended  
31st March,  

2014 

 Year ended  
31st March,  

2013 

 `  ` 

 16,675,640  105,968,029 

dividend distribution tax on CCPS  
 1,552,508  1,431,698 

(c)  Net amount available for equity 
shareholders

 15,123,132  104,536,331 

(d)  Weighted average number of equity 
shares used in computing Basic Earnings 
per share (Nos.)

 21,220,564  17,793,122 

(e)  Effect of weighted average of potential 
equity shares on conversion of CCPS 
(Nos.)

 1,326,986  1,223,726 

(f)  Weighted average number of equity 
shares used in computing Diluted 
Earnings per share (Nos.)

 22,547,550  19,016,848 

(g)  Basic earnings per share (Face value `  0.71  5.88 

(h)  Diluted earnings per share  0.71  5.57 

been ignored and hence restricted to Basic.
2.31 Related party disclosures:

(i)  Names of related parties and nature of relationship where there are 
transactions with related parties:

 
(w.e.f. 17th December, 2013)

Associate company:  
(w.e.f. 28th August, 2012)

Entities over which the Company can  
(w.e.f. 28th August, 2012)

Companies in which directors can  

Key management personnel: Dr. B. Samal, Executive Chairman  

(Of the Holding Company)

(a)  Key management personnel:

Sr. No. Nature of transactions `

(I) Remuneration paid to Dr. B. Samal
3,341,667

(2,352,000)

#
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Sr. 
No.

Nature of transactions Joint  
Ventures

Companies 
under  

Associate 
Company

` ` `

(I) Volume of transactions:
(i)

 20,900,000 
(61,750,000)

(ii) Refund on loan taken

 147,962,500 
(25,000,000)

(iii)
 52,500,000 

(18,375,000)

(107,625,000)
 137,500,000 

 20,000,000 

 15,000,000 

(iv) Refund of loans given

View

 66,937,500 

 55,000,000 

(v) Security deposit given towards 
premises on rent

 47,500 

(vi)
 25,000,000 

(vii)
 15,000,000 

(viii) Subscription of equity shares in a 
joint venture by 

(25,000,000)

(25,000,000)
(ix) Interest income

 9,188,939 
(3,763,171)
 15,747,842 
(11,818,110)

 7,786,644 

 1,123,425 

 569,795 

(x) Brokerage income
17,235,597 

(xi) Interest paid on loan

 17,122,956 
(8,873,651)

(xii) Investments in preference shares

(282,500,000)
(xiii) Investments in equity shares

(141,650,236)
(xiv) Rent paid

 47,500 

(II)
(i)

 28,587 
(121,375)

(127,062,500)
(ii)

deposit)
 515,500 

(468,000)
 119,437,500 

(669,637,500)
 90,562,500 

(157,500,000)
 82,500,000 

 20,654,661 

 15,000,000 

 4,403,305 

year are as under (` 

Particulars 31st March,  
2014

31st March,  
2013

` `

Employer’s contribution to Regional 
Provident Fund Commissioner

 4,246,937  2,031,409 

Employer’s contribution to Family 
Pension Fund

 1,173,310  1,140,540 

Employer’s contribution to Emplyees’ 
State Insurance Corporation 

 920,923  1,302,420 

Employer’s contribution to 
Superannuation Scheme

 157,732 
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31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013
` ` ` `

i
 3,687,171  1,110,241  1,046,957 
 6,185,179 

Conversion to funded from unfunded  1,046,957  (1,046,957)
Interest Cost                                   433,574  160,680 
Current Service Cost                    1,872,531  1,334,121 

(382,837)
 242,757  35,171 

 12,038,375  -    3,687,170  -   
ii Reconciliation of fair value of Plan Assets

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year  31,48,475  1,838,158 
Expected return on Plan Assets  5,60,241  220,842 

 59,03,852 
 6,597 

Employer’s Contribution  9,62,263  1,089,472 
(3,82,837)

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year  1,01,98,591  -    3,148,472  -   
The Company expects to contribute ` 
during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date.
The major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of the fair value of total Plan 
Assets are as follows:
Bank Balance 1.67% 5.19%

98.33% 94.81%

disclosure thereof is not made.
iii

 (12,038,375)  (3,687,170)
Fair value of Plan Assets  10,198,591  3,148,472 

 -    -   
iv Components of Employer’s Expenses

Current Service Cost                      1,872,531  1,334,121 
Interest Cost                                    433,574  160,680 
Expected return on Plan Assets  (560,241)  (220,842)

 242,757  35,171 

` 1,170,049 included in Commission and 
 1,988,621 -  1,309,130 -

Actual return on Plan Assets  560,241 -  220,842 -
v Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality Table   
(Ultimate)

Discount rate 8% N.A. 8% N.A.
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.
Salary escalation N.A. N.A.

vi
supply and demand in the employment market.

 b. The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms consistent with the currency and terms of the  

 c. Expected rate of return on assets is determined based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the 
estimated term of the obligations. 

ecognised in the Balance Sheet as at respective year ends and experience adjustment:
Gratuity 

31st March, 
2014

31st March, 
2013

31st March, 
2012

31st March, 
2011

31st March, 
2010

` ` ` ` `
 12,038,375  3,687,170  2,157,198  1,122,585  653,554 

2.  Fair Value of Plan Assets  10,198,591  3,148,472  1,779,851  1,299,935  840,794 
3.  Funded Status [Surplus]  (1,839,784)  (538,698)  (377,347)  177,350  187,240 
4.  Net Asset  (1,839,784)  (538,698)  (377,347)  177,350  187,240 
5.  Experience adjustment arising on:

 2,036,694  886,547  (43,355)  (55,540)  46,798 
 34,965  16,631  35,506  9,804  5,639 
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2013-14

 Investment 
 activities  

 Insurance   Real Estate 
 activities 

 Investment 

 Services 

 Consultancy 
 Services 

 Insurance 
 Activities 

Others  Eliminations  Total 

A. REVENUE

1 External Revenue  120,827,335  75,592,533 1,191,194,846  276,646  -    626,758,896  -    -    2,014,650,256 

2 81,620,983  5,003,883 -  -    -   -  86,624,866  -   

Segment Revenue 202,448,318 80,596,416 1,191,194,846 276,646  -   626,758,896  -   86,624,866 2,014,650,256

B. RESULTS

1 Segment result  84,008,081  10,669,302  31,589,695  -    -   

2  9,744,180 

3 Exceptional item  -   

4 Unallocable Income net of Unallocable Expense  144,708,922 

5  82,713,751 

6 Provision for taxation

7
interest)

 24,019,357 

8  595,695 

9  24,615,052 

10 Share of loss of associate for the year

11
of associate)

 16,675,640 

C. OTHER INFORMATION

1 Segment assets 1,063,372,388 111,720,483 3,379,850,751  482,935  -    334,964,441  75,153  4,890,466,151 

2 Unallocated Assets  8,817,970,286 

3 Total assets 13,708,436,437 

4 Segment liabilities  9,438,076  54,173,706 3,129,646,501  370,167  -   5,151,413,557  27,978  -    8,345,069,985 

5 Unallocated liabilities  99,305,102 

6 Total liabilities  8,444,375,087 

7 Cost incurred during the period to acquire the  441,491 101,587,610  2,257,311  -    -    7,927,030  -    -    112,213,442 

8 Depreciation and amortisation expenses (to 
the extent allocable to segment)

 1,714,060  6,380,559  1,120,469  -    -    1,101,091  -    -    10,316,179 

9
amortisation

 7,320,000  -    -    -    -    -    -    7,320,000 

Note:
The Group caters to the need of domestic market and hence there are no reportable geographical segments.

Type of services in each business segment:

Investment activities : Activites related to Investments Business.

Insurance Broking : Activites related to Insurance Broking.

Real Estate activities : Real Estate development and related activities.

Consultancy Services : Consultancy Services related to Financial management

Others : Represents Media and Entertainment.

2.33 Segment Information :

`
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2012-2013

 Investment 
 activities 

 Insurance   Real Estate 
 activities 

 Investment 

 Services 

 Consultancy 
 Services 

 Insurance 
 Activities 

Others  Eliminations  Total 

A. REVENUE

1 External Revenue  120,826,921 151,125,766  931,635,208  1,756,242  5,000,000 1,210,344,137 

2  27,173,281  27,173,281 

Segment Revenue 148,000,202 151,125,766 931,635,208 1,756,242 5,000,000 27,173,281 1,210,344,137

B. RESULTS

1 Segment result  79,191,386  79,117,062  21,879,803  (1,090,715)  2,153,044  (91,850)  181,158,730 

2 Interest expense  223,462 

3 Exceptional item

4 Unallocable Income net of Unallocable Expense  24,676,182 

5  205,611,450 

6 Provision for taxation  (60,495,089)

7
interest)

 145,116,361 

8  (25,617,318)

9  119,499,043 

10 Share of loss of associate for the year  (13,531,014)

11
associate)

 105,968,029 

C. OTHER INFORMATION

1 Segment assets 4,451,568,672  53,691,636 3,178,618,684  36,597,996  5,056,200  181,934 7,725,715,122 

2 Unallocated Assets  607,557,516 

3 Total assets 8,333,272,638 

4 Segment liabilities  60,826,617  12,317,609 2,940,911,437  728,973  16,854 3,014,801,490 

5 Unallocated liabilities  23,463,383 

6 Total liabilities 3,038,264,873 

7 Cost incurred during the period to acquire the 
Segment assets 

 1,198,936  1,767,301  744,625  4,253  4,253  3,719,367 

8 Depreciation and amortisation expenses (to 
the extent allocable to segment)

 1,295,882  1,727,498  1,130,860  273,999  273,999  4,702,238 

9
amortisation

 9,551,000  9,551,000 

`
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2.34 (i) Group’s share of interest in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses with respect to jointly controlled entities (each without elimination of the effects of 

period (from the date of acquisition) ended 31st March, 2014:     
        (`) 

Particulars 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS (58,902,080) (12,972,078)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

15,000,000 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  12,327  18,706 
Other long term liabilities  1,146,458,228  1,271,564,663 

 4,918,844,735 
 7,823,368  304,371 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings  405,177,500  330,125,000 
Trade payable  381,947,172  260,006,948 
Other current liabilities

 126,610,641 
 1,390,207,933  1,127,194,604 

Short term provisions  26,952,782  17,810,171 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets (Net Block)
(i)  Tangible assets  4,565,569  2,529,402 
(ii)  Intangible assets  6,218,478  299,729 
(iii)  Capital work in progress  202,497 

 3,094,414,024 
 56,960,288  6,554,861 

Deferred tax assets (net)  247,292  102,762 
 511,823  939,907 

CURRENT ASSETS
Current investments  2,093,186,864  82,008,031 
Inventories  2,731,500,856  2,582,090,498 
Trade receivables  317,170,695  216,767,811 
Cash and bank balance  310,380,547  72,902,630 

 171,867,501  105,234,958 
Other current assets  262,476,453  2,259,635 

INCOME
 1,002,378,860  786,253,856 

Premium from Insurance Business  548,129,899 
Other operating income from Insurance Business  78,628,997 
Other Income from insurance Business  105,942,465 
Other operating income  1,207,606  1,705,885 
Interest  19,336,017  6,015,080 
Dividend income on current investments  1,659,750  3,339,998 

 2,547,848 
Other Income  2,933,568  219,461 

Cost of sales  906,117,163  684,862,344 
 7,525,380  7,114,542 

Finance costs  7,707,251  1,927 
 205,668,608 

Commission and Operating expenses pertaining to Insurance Business  516,393,585 
Other expenses pertaining to Insurance Business  90,248,716 
Depreciation  671,445  786,860 
Other expenses  51,700,691  69,333,093 
Provision for taxation  24,360,172  10,266,197 
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Particulars 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 
Other Information
Contingent liabilities and commitments not provided for 
(i)  Contingent liabilities:
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

 2,867,809  3,264,935 
 7,527,738 

(b) Guarantee
 1,425,000  500,000 

(c)  1,281,600 
(ii) Capital Commitment :
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, to the extent not provided for (net of 

advances).
 212,175  Nil 

(iii)  Other Commitments :
(a)

their letter have stipulated to make budgetary provision amounting to 2% of total project cost towards Environment 
Corporate Responsibility (ECR).

(b) 247,419,225

(ii) Investment in associate:     

Particulars  31st March,  
2014 

 31st March,  
2013 

(i) Number of equity shares (Nos.)  13,018,125  13,018,125 
(ii) Percentage holding (%)  25  25 
(iii) Cost of Investment (Equity shares)  155,181,250  155,181,250 

 45,086,997  45,086,997 
(iv) Share in accumulated loss net of dividend received as at the beginning of the year (13,531,014)

(7,939,412) (13,531,014)

(v) Share of accumulated loss net of dividend received (21,470,427) (13,531,014)
(vi) Carrying cost  133,710,824  141,650,236 

17, 2013 for a total consideration of `
 The management views the investment in positive light as insurance industry plays a crucial role in the growth and development of the overall economy.  There is a huge 

at March 31, 2014 has substantially eroded. There is no impairment as at March 31, 2014, in the value of Goodwill on consolidation arising on such acqusition.

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
              
           DR. B. SAMAL   BIPIN AGARWAL  
          Executive Chairman   Director  
 
          CUMI BANERJEE     
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014         CEO & Company Secretary    
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2.37 Statement pursuant to general exemption received under Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to subsidiary companies
          (`)

2013-2014 2012-2013

 IITL  

Limited 

 IIT  
Investrust 

Limited 

 IIT Insurance 

 
Management 

Private Limited 

 IIT Media  
and  

Entertainment 
Private   
Limited 

 IITL  

Limited 

 IIT  
Investrust 

Limited 

 IIT Insurance 

 
Management 

Private Limited 

 IIT Media  
and  

Entertainment 
Private  
Limited 

1. Capital  120,079,000  125,000,000  25,000,000  1,500,000  120,079,000  125,000,000  25,000,000  1,500,000 

2. Reserves  88,706,346  48,524,980  57,276,539  255,786,607  50,258,627  45,795,043  (1,334,920)

3. Total Assets  668,547,750  174,295,314  172,297,413  75,153  681,178,217  177,855,873  133,015,087  181,934 

4.  459,762,404  770,334  90,020,874  27,978  305,312,609  2,597,247  62,220,044  16,854 

5. Details of Investments

Venture
 55,000,000  -    -    55,000,000 

Venture
 250,000,000  -    -   

 71,446,639  -    -  22,637,840 

6. Turnover  208,906,564  4,734,320  85,261,983  -    170,589,781  14,611,764  154,621,145 

7.  17,104,357  (20,925,277)  5,121,909  82,612,441  (91,844)

8. Provision for taxation  241,331  84,073  -    102,951  (1,806,587)  (27,063,255)

9.  11,481,496  (20,822,326)  3,315,322  55,549,186  (91,844)

10. Proposed dividend  -    -    -    -    43,583,438 

11. Interim dividend paid (including 
tax thereon)

 -    -    -    -   

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

           DR. B. SAMAL   BIPIN AGARWAL  
          Executive Chairman   Director  
 
          CUMI BANERJEE     
Mumbai: 20th May, 2014         CEO & Company Secretary    
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